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BANK’S CREDIT RATINGS (6 February 2006)
Rating agency Long-term borrowing/outlook Short-term credit Support Individual

Fitch Ratings Ltd. A - / Positive F2 1 D

MAIN PERFORMANCE RATIOS
2004 2005

Assets (LTL million) 3,614.8 5,128.8

Net loans (LTL million) 2,475.8 3,749.6

Proportion of individual loans in total portfolio (percent) 37.7 39.9

Deposits (LTL million) 1,967.4 2,624.6

Proportion of individual deposits in total portfolio (percent) 46.1 49.3

BANK’S SHAREHOLDERS (31 December 2005)

Shareholders
Number of ordinary registered 

shares
Share capital 

LTL
Share capital

percent

Bank  DnB NORD A/S  2,294,643 217,991,085 93.11

East Capital Asset Management 160,857 15,281,415 6.53

Other natural and legal persons 8,816 837,520 0.36

Total: 2,464,316 234,110,020 100.00

KEY PROFITABILITY RATIOS

Key profitability ratios
NORD/LB

Group 2004 Bank 2004 Group 2005  Bank 2005

Cost to income ratio CIR (percent) 91.4 91.0 68.1 67.7

Return on equity ROE (percent) 10.5 10.5 18.5 18.4
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In the environment of stronger than ever competition 
the year 2005 was the best year in the history of AB Bankas 
NORD/LB Lietuva profit-wise. In the reporting year AB Ban-
kas NORD/LB Lietuva according to International Accounting 
Standards earned a net profit of LTL 43.04 million thanks to 
a rapidly increasing customer base, fast rising loan portfolio 
and further improvement of the Bank’s operating efficiency. 
The organic growth of the Bank was also ensured by rational 
allocation of the Bank’s resources and balanced risk man-
agement policy.

In 2005, the Bank’s assets topped LTL 5 billion bench-
mark for the first time in the Bank’s history and the Bank 
firmly held its position among the country’s top three banking 
institutions. The assets of AB Bankas NORD/LB Lietuva rose 
by 42 percent year-on-year to LTL 5.13 billion as at the end 
of December, up from LTL 3.62 billion a year ago. The asset 
growth is largely attributed to a 51 percent loan portfolio to 
individuals and corporate growth (up to LTL 3.75 billion).

The corporate loan portfolio of AB Bankas NORD/LB 
Lietuva rose by 46 per cent year-on-year to LTL 2.25 billion 
as at the end of 2005. The growth resulted from a particularly 
increased financing of furniture and wood processing industry, 
food processing companies, wholesale and retail businesses 
and real estate projects. In 2006 the Bank will continue to 
focus on financing of residential housing construction in 
all major cities of Lithuania as well as small and medium 
size businesses. The Bank will also pay prime attention 
to partnership projects of public and private sectors thus 
creating higher value added to municipalities - the Bank’s 
long-term partners. 

The Bank’s loan portfolio to individual customers rose by 
LTL 562 million (to LTL 1.5 billion) during 2005, the increase 
reflecting not only the increasing purchasing power and posi-
tive expectations of the customers but also a positive impact 
of customer loyalty programme as well as competitive lending 
terms offered by NORD/LB Lietuva.

The focus on product and service quality to comply with 
the changing needs of the customers helped the Bank to aug-
ment the number of customers by about a fifth in 2005 (up 
to 499 thousand). A rapid development of NORD/LB Lietuva 
Internet banking is worth pointing out. Over the reporting 
year, the number of the Bank’s internet banking customers 
increased by 82 percent (to 120 thousand users), while the 
average turnover of each payment card issued by the Bank 
rose by 18.6 percent year-on-year (to LTL 5100). In 2006 the 
Bank intends to strengthen its position in retail banking mar-
ket by developing new banking products and services and in-
vesting into further improvement of customer service quality.

Over the reporting year, the Bank continued to invest in 
staff training. The financial results achieved indicate that the 
strategy pays off as it allows using the opportunities offered 
by the growing market better and gives a stronger foothold 
for business development in the future. The Bank intends to 
continue investing in annual customer satisfaction surveys 
to align adequately staff training programs and progress with 
staff loyalty programs. In the reporting year the number of the 
Bank’s employees averaged 1016.

In 2005, the Bank earned LTL 102.2 million in net in-
terest income, representing a 29 per cent rise compared to 
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the previous year despite a decline in interest margins and 
consequently lower profitability of the total loan portfolio. The 
Bank’s net commission income rose by 23.6 percent (to LTL 
41 million) thanks to more intense cross selling of value-add-
ed banking products and services.

The rational distribution of the available resources have 
helped to reduce the Bank’s operating expenses by LTL 3.1 
million (to LTL 94 million) despite fast business growth. As at 
the end of 2005 the Bank’s return on equity (ROE) rose to 
18.4 per cent, up from 10.5 percent as at the end of 2004 
while the cost/income ratio (CIR) went down to 67.7 percent 
from 91 percent as at the end of 2004. 

The Bank’s deposits and letters of credit rose by LTL 
657.3 million to LTL 2.6 billion as at the end of 2005.  The 
deposit structure suggests the Bank has been increasingly 
used as a transaction bank.

The Bank NORD/LB Lietuva, a principal participant of 
Lithuania‘s debt securities market has successfully placed a 
3-year LTL 50 million face value bond with a fixed interest 
rate (3.25 per cent). The Bank also offered to the market its 
3-year EUR 3 million face value bonds linked to the European 
blue chip index – Dow Jones EURO STOXX 50. The Bank also 
lead-managed the LTL 20 million bond issue of Lithuania‘s 
largest clothing retailer Apranga. The issuance of debt securi-
ties let the Bank offer its customers a wider range of invest-
ment possibilities and also diversify the Bank’s finding base. 
As at the end of 2005 the Bank had outstanding bonds with 
book value of LTL 441 million.

The spectrum of services offered by the Bank was enlarged 
through cooperation with its 100 percent owned subsidiaries. 
The Bank’s subsidiary UAB NORD/LB Lizingas augmented its 
leasing portfolio by 46 percent (up to LTL 324 million) in 2005 
and earned a net profit of LTL 1.73 million. UAB NORD/LB 
Lizingas increased its local market share to 6.1 percent in 
2005 (5.8 percent as at the end of 2004) and opened its first 
representative office abroad in Kaliningrad (Russia).   

UAB NORD/LB Investicijų Valdymas held 6 percent of 
Lithuania’s market in terms of second-pillar pension fund 
participants. The investments to its third-pillar pension fund 
grew almost three times to LTL 5.7 million. Total assets under 
UAB NORD/LB Investicijų Valdymas management stood at 
LTL 50.7 million as at the end of 2005 and the company’s  
reported result for last year was LTL 0.5 million loss, as it was 
planed.

In 2005 AB Bankas NORD/LB Lietuva raised LTL 73.88 
million through the new share issue that further strengthened 
the Bank’s capital base. The Bank’s NORD/LB Lietuva share 
capital registered with the Register of Legal Entities is LTL 

234.11 million. During the reporting period, the Bank carried 
out its business through 85 customer service outlets through-
out the country and was not engaged in the Bank’s equity 
share trading nor traded the stock of its subsidiaries.

Due to the proper risk management policy the Bank 
met all prudential requirements of the Bank of Lithuania. 
Fitch Ratings, the international rating agency, evaluated the 
progress and business efficiency demonstrated by NORD/LB 
Lietuva during the reporting year, and on 6 February 2006 
upgraded the individual rating to D and outlook of the long-
term borrowing rating A- from stable to positive and affirmed 
short-term rating at F2 and support rating at 1. 

In 2005 the shareholders’ structure of the Bank NORD/
LB Lietuva changed after Bank DnB NORD A/S registered 
in Denmark became the Bank’s largest shareholder late last 
year. The Bank DnB NORD A/S was established by German 
bank Norddeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale (NORD/LB) 
and the largest Norwegian bank DnB NOR Bank ASA. On 
December 20, NORD/LB transferred 51 percent shares of the 
Bank DnB NORD A/S to Norwegian bank DnB NOR Bank 
ASA providing 51 percent of all voting shares in the general 
meeting of shareholders of the Bank DnB NORD A/S. There-
by Norwegian bank DnB NOR Bank ASA acquired indirect 
control of AB Bankas NORD/LB Lietuva whereas the Bank 
DnB NORD A/S owns 93.11 percent shares of AB Bankas 
NORD/LB Lietuva.

We strongly believe that a combined experience, strong 
funding base and business know-how of two well established 
partners will provide for NORD/LB Lietuva’s further rapid ad-
vance. This year we plan to invest in further upgrades of the 
Bank’s IT systems, the Bank’s re-branding campaign includ-
ing expenses for adjusting the Bank’s activities for Lithuania’s 
planned litas/euro shift that we strongly support. Despite the 
planned one-off spending increase we are targeting to earn in 
2006 a net profit in line with the 2005 result.

On behalf of the Management Board of NORD/LB Lietuva 
I would like to thank all customers, employees and share-
holders of the Bank for confidence, good cooperation and 
contribution. We believe that through combined efforts we will 
continue successful business development this year consist-
ently implementing our main goal - to become the country’s 
leading bank in terms of service quality. 

    On behalf of the Management Board of the Bank

    Werner Schilli

    Chairman of the Management Board



�

Share capital and shareholders’ structure

On 8 September 2005, AB Bankas NORD/LB Lietuva regis-
tered the amendments to the Bank’s Bylaws with the Register of 
Legal Entities that reflect the increase of the authorized capital up 
to LTL 234,110,020 from LTL 195,116,795. The registered au-
thorized capital is divided into 2,464,316 ordinary nominal shares. 
The offering price was LTL 180 per share with par value of LTL 
95 each.

In 2005, the shareholding structure of the Bank changed 
as at the year-end the Bank DnB NORD A/S registered in Den-
mark became the largest shareholder of the Bank. The German 
bank Norddeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale (NORD/LB) joined 
forces with the bank DnB NOR Bank ASA, the largest Norwegian 
financial institution, in establishing a joint bank. On 20 Decem-
ber 2005, the Bank’s majority shareholder NORD/LB transferred 
51 percent of shares of the Bank DnB NORD A/S to the Norwe-
gian bank DnB NOR Bank ASA providing 51 percent of all voting 
shares in the general meeting of shareholders of the Bank DnB 
NORD A/S. Thereby Norwegian bank DnB NOR Bank ASA ac-
quired indirect control of AB Bankas NORD/LB Lietuva whereas 
Denmark-based Bank DnB NORD A/S owns 93.11 percent of the 
shares of AB Bankas NORD/LB Lietuva providing 93.11 percent 
of all voting shares in the general meeting of shareholders of AB 
Bankas NORD/LB Lietuva. The Bank DnB NORD A/S started op-
erations in January 2006.

Management Board

On 2 June 2005, with the aim to consistently enhance close 
cooperation between the two sister banks NORD/LB Lietuva and 
NORD/LB Latvija the Supervisory Council made a decision to in-
stall a joint management board membership and elected Rudolf 
Franz Karges and Gundars Andžans to the management boards 
of both banks. Rudolf Karges is responsible for accounting and 
reporting, finance controlling and financial risk management in 
the Bank. He replaced the Board Member Dr. Hinrich Holm who 
resigned from his position from 29 July 2005 to continue his ca-
reer in the parent bank NORD/LB in Hanover following a promo-
tion.  Gundars Andžans is responsible for strategic management of 
the Bank’s IT systems, projects and organizational solutions under 
implementation.

On 1 December 2005, the Bank’s Supervisory Council re-
called Thomas S. Buerkle, Chairman of the Management Board 
and President of the Bank, from his office with effect from Decem-
ber 30 after he was appointed to the position of a General Manager 
of NORD/LB branch in New York starting January 1, 2006. On the 
same day, following the proposal of the Supervisory Council, the 
Management Board elected the Board Member Werner Schilli as 
the Chairman of the Management Board and appointed him as 
the Bank’s President from December 31, 2005.  

Credit ratings

On 21 June 2005, following the conclusion of a partnership 
agreement between the Bank’s majority shareholder NORD/LB 
and the largest Norwegian financial group DnB NOR on a joint 
bank for north-eastern Europe Fitch Ratings Ltd., the international 
rating agency, affirmed the Bank’s ratings at Long-term A- with the 
Stable Outlook, Short-term F2, Individual rating D/E, Support rat-
ing 1. Fitch Ratings has evaluated the progress and business ef-
ficiency demonstrated by the Bank in the reporting year and on 6 
February 2006 upgraded the bank’s long-term borrowing outlook 
from stable to positive as well as the individual rating from D/E to 
D. The long-term borrowing rating was affirmed at A-, short-term 
borrowing at F2, and support at 1 as a result of the profitable and 
more efficient business operations of the Bank NORD/LB Lietuva.

Securities issuing

On 13 January 2005, the Bank issued a 3-year bond issue 
with the face value of LTL 50 million (500 000 units at par value of 
LTL 100) with a fixed 3.25 percent interest rate. These bonds are 
listed on the debt securities list of the Vilnius Stock Exchange. 

In November 2005, the Bank registered with the Lithuanian 
Securities Commission the base prospectuses on LTL 170 mil-
lion fixed-interests and LTL 80 million equity or commodity index 
linked bond programs. 

On December 5, 2005, the Bank issued three-year EUR 3 million 
face value bonds linked to the European blue chip index – Dow 
Jones EURO STOXX 50. The allotment of the total bond issue was 
closed on December 13, 2005. This bond issue constituted the 
first part of LTL 80 million equity index linked bond program.

HIGHLIGHTS of the Bank in 2005

Management Board (from the left):
Gundars Andžans, Board Member;

Alditas Saulius, Board Member;
Werner H. Schilli; Chairman of the Management Board;

Dr. Vygintas Bubnys, Vice-chairman of the Management Board;
Rudolf Karges, Board Member.
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SPECIAL FOCUS ON THE CUSTOMER

staff is the bank’s strength and advantage 

Vision

•	 Our goal is to be the most dynamic and reliable financial 
institution in Lithuania. We use Team spirit and Simplicity 
as our instruments to create Dynamics.

•	 DnB NORD Bankas aims to be among the top three banks 
in the Baltic region (as part of DnB NORD group).

MisSion

•	 We want to be your bank for the future of your business. 
We believe that everything is possible. Just follow your 
ideas. Others try, we do it!

•	 We help our customers to realise their ambitions, to be an 
important part of their business and daily life. 

•	 We take challenges as chances. We enjoy to work hard 
and to make things happen.

Values 

•	 Dynamics: we act!
•	 Simplicity: we know that simple solutions are better than 

complicated structures.
•	 Team spirit: we believe we are strong together.
•	 Reliability: we build our bank on Trust and Fairness.

Strategic priorities for main activities

•	 Our main focus is on retail customers (individuals and 
small legal entities).

•	 We work with corporate customers.
•	 We do investment banking, asset management and leasing.

strategY

In line with the main operational principles, in 2005 the 
Bank continued focusing on customer service quality. Dur-
ing the reporting year the Bank has significantly improved 
customer service quality, which was one of the main reasons 
enabling the Bank to increase the number of customers by a 
fifth. At the end of 2005, the Bank was providing its services 
to almost half a million customers.  

With the aim to provide services in accordance to chang-
ing needs of the customers, the Bank carried out repeated 
surveys of customer satisfaction with its products and service 
quality. The results of the surveys indicate that among the 
customers the service quality was among the most appreci-
ated characteristics of the Bank.

In order to further improve the service quality in the Bank, 
special attention has been given to such factors as the ability 
of sales-managers to offer services that best meet custom-
ers’ needs, constant attention and care for the customer. To 
achieve that goal, the Mystery Shopping survey is carried out 
at least three times a year to assess the sales managers’ com-
pliance with the approved customer service standards and 

their ability to serve customers in a professional way. The cus-
tomer satisfaction survey is conducted at least once a year in 
cooperation with an external company. The data of the survey 
carried out in December 2005 indicated that 85 percent of 
the customers were satisfied with the service quality of the 
Bank. The Bank adjusts its products, processes, and cus-
tomer services according to the results of these surveys. 

In view of implementing modern customer service qual-
ity management methods the Bank participated in a special 
program SQM-Monitoring (Sparkassen Quality Management-
Monitoring) in the reporting year that opened possibilities for 
accommodating the German banking experience.

The Bank specialists continuously follow the market 
trends, analyze developments of customer needs in view to 
improve the processes related with customer service quality, 
and refocus staff trainings. In 2006, the Bank intends to fur-
ther invest in improvement of customer service quality, to ex-
pand the range of products and services to further strengthen 
its positions on the retail banking market.

In line with the Bank’s mission to become the best bank 
for the employees, the Human Resource department’s policy 
is aimed at creating the necessary terms and conditions for 
staff to realise their personal and professional potential. Staff 
development based on relevant competences is the  key pre-
condition that gives the Bank an advantage and also increas-
es the employees’ loyalty and satisfaction with their work.

Career planning is one of the HR management meth-
ods. With the view of expanding the knowledge and employ 
strengths about 3 percent of the employees changed their 
positions in the Bank in 2005. In order to create higher ca-
reer potential and to “raise” managers, the Bank developed 
and implemented High Potential program with participation 
of 20 employees during the entire year. They acquired man-
aging skills, participated in project groups, and at the end of 
the program were assessed in the Assessment Centre.

In 2005, the remuneration and incentives system was 
changed in the Bank. Evaluation of the employees’ perform-
ance results is now based not only on the sales amounts but 

also on the internal appraisal system which is focused on 
providing good quality services. The bank supported the em-
ployees’ studies at higher education institutions. 

Aiming at developing long-term relations between the 
company and employees, the Loyalty program was started in 
the reporting year covering almost 200 employees. Monthly 
nominations and elections of the best employee also serves 
as an efficient motivation instrument.

In view of the changing market and new challenges, the 
Bank payed much attention to introductory training of the 
newly employed staff as well as to staff training programs. 
The employees could improve their skills in seminars on fi-
nancial, sales or service issues, and the program on improve-
ment of managerial skills was developed, too. 

The Bank is investing in specialists and managers since 
we believe that only professional and motivated employees 
give a competitive advantage to the Bank, and the long-term 
cooperation ensures further growth of the Bank.



�

Main economic indicators
Period 2004 2005 2006

Real GDP growth (percent) 7.0 6.9 (I-III) 6.0

Current account deficit (as percentage of GDP) 7.7 6.9 (I-III) 7.0

Inflation (percent) 2) 2.9 3.0    2.7

Average mounthly earnings, annual change (percent) 8.5 9.4 (III) 10.0

Unemployment rate (percent) 3) 10.6 7.2 (III) 7.0

Average annual interest rate on loans in national currency (percent) 3) 5.6 4.8 (Nov) 5.5

Fiscal balance (as percentage of GDP) -1.4 1.2 (I-III) -1.5

1)    Forecast
2)    CPI change over a period
3)    Data of Labour force survey

The preliminary macroeconomic data for 2005 show the 
continuous trend of rapid and balanced development of the 
national economy. A strong positive momentum gained by 
Lithuanian economy after accession to the European Union 
has been able to fully compensate the negative impact of 
recent unfavourable trends such as the increasing shortage 
of skilled labour force, growing prices for energy sources and 
certain major raw materials as well as increasing pressure 
from the Asian competitors. 

From January to September of 2005, the rate of econom-
ic growth remained at the level of 2004. The country’s gross 
domestic product (GDP) at constant prices rose 6.9 percent 
compared with the previous year while exports growth even 
accelerated.  Although the annual increase in the value add-
ed created by industry was slightly lower during the reference 
period, there was a significant improvement in transport, con-
struction, financial intermediation and hotels and restaurants 
sectors. It is quite natural that the positive effect of integration 
has been most obvious during the first year of membership 

in the European Union due to elimination of some custom 
duties, significant improvement in exports framework and 
the EU Structural Funds support. The boom of borrowing is 
continuing to boost the development of the construction, do-
mestic trade and banking sectors. The national balance of 
payments stands as a proof that foreign loans is a significant 
source of current economic development. From January to 
September, the net foreign investment flow came at LTL 3.9 
billion:  Portfolio investments were marginal, direct invest-
ments stood at just LTL 0.5 billion while loans amounted to 
LTL 3.5 billion. Moreover, statistical analysis has shown an 
unexpected improvement in the number of employed dur-
ing this year (significant increase in the number of employed 
senior citizens) despite complaints from the business com-
munity about the lack of labour force and continuous reduc-
tion in the population size. Its impact on the growth of GDP 
was further supported by favourable redistribution of the la-
bour force, i.e. number of workers employed in agriculture 
where labour productivity is significantly lower than the coun-
try-wide average decreased.

Real GDP annual change (%)
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MACROECONOMIC OVERVIEW  

However, it is hardly likely that the number of employed 
will continue to grow in 2006 unless re-emigration increas-
es. Deteriorating demographic situation, lower unemploy-
ment rate and willingness of many young people (and not 
only them) to go work in the better-off countries support the 

opposite trend. Our pessimism is further supported by the 
rather poor FDI data and slow increase in the investments in 
tangible assets. This is why it is expected that the economic 
growth will slow down  in 2006 compared with 2005.
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The fiscal balance of the national budget in 2005 was 
definitely better than expected as the accounting methodol-
ogy has been amended towards reduction and the share of 
collected taxes in the GDP has been substantially higher than 
the year before. Besides, better tax administration usually 
leads to reduction of the shadow economy’s share and im-
proves official statistical indicators of economic development. 
Therefore, it is quite likely that in the year 2005 the Lithua-
nian economy has been growing at a slightly slower pace than 
the official statistics suggests.

Comparison between preliminary macroeconomic indica-
tors of Lithuania and other Baltic States for 2005 lowers the 
euphoria surrounding successful development of our national 
economy as both Latvian and Estonian economies grew faster 
during the last two years and these countries were able to 
attract more FDI. If the economic policy of Lithuania is not 
made more aggressive, the situation is unlikely to change 
in the future in this respect. Relatively successful economy 
growth results of recent years could have given the country’s 
government a false sense that there is no need for proac-
tive approach and the economy will continue to power ahead 
on its own.  Efforts to attract major foreign investments have 
been very slack so far (less than 0.1% of the total expenditure 
has been appropriated for direct promotion of investments in 
the national budget for 2006), there are virtually no industrial 
zones to attract greenfield investments, the reform in the edu-
cation and science sphere has stalled. At he same time there 
is surprising willingness to accept significantly stricter obliga-
tions regarding the fiscal deficit of Lithuania than required by 
the Growth and Stability Pact.

Unfortunately, long-term prospects for the national econ-
omy are not as good as it may seem at first glance. We may 
well see three negative trends in the nearest future, i.e. the 
decrease in number of employed, reduction of demand in 
slightly overheated real estate market and significant slow-
down of export development due to the increasing pressure 
from Chinese manufacturers.

The fact that the invasion of Asian products has not yet 
had any impact on the national export indicators created an 
illusion that the competitive pressure might not be as hard as 
anticipated.. For instance, despite the fact that Chinese tex-
tiles pressured the European market in 2005, some Lithua-
nian businesses were even able to increase their production 
and profitability. However, more in-depth analysis shows that 
this is just a temporary phenomenon. Chinese textile exports 
to the European Union increased by several dozen percent 
but had only a minor impact on local producers since its pri-
mary effect was the displacement of some products imported 
from such third countries as Pakistan, Burma, some North 
African countries, etc., while total European imports of textiles 
increased slightly. However, further influx of Chinese products 
will continue to exert pressure on European textile producers. 
Similar situation is developing in the market of other goods’ 
groups.

Almost 80 percent of Lithuanian exports of goods and 
services are secured by the manufacturing industry and 
the majority of its production competes with Chinese goods. 
Moreover, most businesses in this sector of the national econ-
omy produce goods with low value added (the share of value 
added is less than one third of total production) and such 
type of production is extremely sensitive to increases in pric-

es for raw materials, which in their turn has been driven by 
rapid development of production in China. It is not surprising, 
therefore, that the long-term forecasts of Western analysts 
paint a very positive picture for resource-rich countries such 
as Russia, Brazil, RSA, Australia, etc. 

Obviously, the fact that Russian and Kazakh economies 
will be rapidly developing in the nearest future is not bad news 
for Lithuania. This will stimulate the Ukrainian and Belarus 
economies and boost import and export flows of the entire 
CIS which will enable Lithuania to raise additional revenues 
from transit and increase its exports of production to the East. 
Moreover, rapidly growing export revenues of Russian com-
panies encourage their owners to direct some of their surplus 
funds to countries with lower risk. Our country, as a EU mem-
ber state and operator of the Russian-standard gauge railway, 
is an attractive place for development of production which 
uses raw materials from the East and exports its produce to 
Western Europe. Until now, investments of Russian capital 
in Lithuania have been partially hampered by the prevailing 
view of the government that such investments increase politi-
cal risk. However, it is likely that the shortage of investments 
from the West will make Russian capital more welcome than 
before. 

Recently, Lithuania has paid increasing attention to chang-
es in consumer prices as there is still uncertainty whether 
the annual rate of inflation will meet the Maastricht criterion 
in the middle of 2006. Failure may force to delay the adop-
tion of the euro in 2007, which is expected to give additional 
boost to economic development. All doubts surrounding the 
likelihood of this threat disappeared in the summer as grow-
ing wages and changes in exchange rates (in the autumn of 
2004, the dollar fell down dramatically in relation to the euro, 
which slowed down the increase in prices in Lithuania, and 
started to gain ground in 2005) were pointing at the higher 
rate of inflation in the autumn compared with last year.  How-
ever, these warnings by the analysts have not been taken into 
account and the Government did not use the opportunity to 
agree with municipalities to leave public transportation fares 
unchanged until the autumn of 2006. As things are now, the 
chances that the price index will meet the above-mentioned 
requirement are less than 50 percent.

 
With the view of mitigating the problem of depleting hu-

man resources, recently the necessity to reform the science 
and education system has been discussed very widely. The 
purpose of the reform would be to strike the balance between 
the supply and demand of specialists trained at universities 
and bridge the gap between science and business which 
would facilitate implementation of innovations in the national 
economy. This process in Lithuania is also hampered by the 
existing official policy. The government so far has taken the 
easiest route providing direct finance for the contribution of 
Lithuanian researchers to the global science instead of stimu-
lating business innovations. This path is much easier than 
developing the system promoting transposition of global sci-
entific achievements into the national economy. 

The success of creating the foundation for long-term rap-
id growth of the Lithuanian economy essentially relies on the 
ability to increase the efficiency of science, education and 
vocational training system and to attract foreign direct invest-
ments related to modern technologies.
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THE Bank’s ACTIVITies IN 2005

In 2005, the Bank’s assets topped the benchmark of LTL 
5 billion for the first time in the Bank’s history. Competitive 
interest rates, optimistic expectations of individual and corpo-

rate customers as well as the Bank’s continuous efforts to im-
prove the service quality resulted in the significant increase 
of the loan portfolio.

During the reporting year, the individual loan portfolio 
rose by LTL 552 million, i.e. 59 percent, and reached LTL 
1.5 billion at the year-end. At the end of the reporting period 
the Bank held 17.43 percent of the country’s individual loans 
market. The Bank’s consumer loan portfolio saw an increase 
of 99 percent (up to LTL 480 million). The Bank’s mortgage 
loan portfolio grew by 45 percent and exceeded LTL 1 billion 
landmark.

In 2005, the individual deposits with the Bank rose by LTL 
385 million, i.e. 45 percent, and totalled LTL 1.3 billion at the 
year-end. It made 9.4 percent of the total individual deposits 
held with banks in Lithuania. In the reporting year, the individ-
ual time deposits increased by LTL 108 million, i.e. 19 percent 
(up to LTL 679 million) and individual demand deposits rose 
by LTL 277 million, i.e. 84 percent (up to LTL 607 million).   

In the reporting year, the Bank:
•	 launched a new lending product – express consumer 

credit with insurance;
•	 improved polices and procedures related with issuing 

of mortgage and private credits;
•	 signed the agreement with the Ministry of Finance of 

the Republic of Lithuania on issuing mortgage credits under 
Government support;

•	 signed an updated agreement with UAB Būsto Paskolų 
Draudimas;

•	 launched a new saving product – universal deposit;
•	 issued a handbook for customers with a detailed 

scheme of action for taking a mortgage credit;
•	 increased the added value to the customers taking 

mortgage credits: renewed agreements with partners partici-
pating in the mortgage credits program “+100 friends” and 
expanded the list of participants;

•	 launched promotion campaigns for retail products.

Individual CUSTOMER MARKET

PRIVATE BANKING

In 2005, the private banking service was focused on the 
Bank’s VIP customers through developing financial services 
and solutions to meet their individual needs. To achieve this, 
the Bank invested in training and skill improvement of the 
employees who service VIP customers.

The Bank follows the core principle in private banking to 
develop individual approach towards the customer, ascertain 
their needs and provide optimal products and services al-
lowing the customers to make the best decisions in terms of 
efficiency and financial benefit.
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SmALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES (SME)

SME financing was one of the Bank’s key priorities in 
2005. In the reporting year, 2,900 SME accounts were 
opened with the Bank. In 2005, the SME outstanding loans 
grew by LTL 209.8 million, i.e. 75.9 percent, while the SME 
deposits increased by LTL 120.6 million, or 21.6 percent.  

The growth of loans and deposits of small and medium 
business was influenced by::

•  development of SME standard products (credit, credit 
line, overdraft);

•  development of SME service package and providing of 
a loyal customer status;

•  improvement of SME scoring system.

The Bank paid a special attention to start-up businesses 
and tailored a special services package for them. In 2005, the 
Bank continued its close cooperation with UAB Investicijų ir 
Garantijų Fondas and UAB Žemės ūkio Paskolų Garantijos 

Fondas and was one of the most active credit institutions to 
issue SME credits under guarantees of these funds.

Lending to SMEs will remain the priority  of the Bank’s 
business.

Bank‘S PARTNERS

The Bank is in active cooperation with real estate, con-
struction, consulting and other companies. The cooperation 
means that the partner recommends the Bank as a reliable 
partner to its customers. In the reporting year the Bank 
signed cooperation agreements with even 30 successful and 
reputable companies. The partners are granted the right to 
indirectly sell the Bank’s products and services: mortgages 
and consumer credits to individuals as well as bank accounts 
and investment credits to small and medium enterprises.

In 2005, individual loans sold by the Bank’s partners 
stood at LTL 17.2 million, while corporate loans amounted to 
LTL 36.4 million.

In 2006, the Bank is planning to expand the network of 
partners as well as the number and volumes of the Bank’s 
products and services sold through the partners. Mortgage 
market will be the main focus.

CORPORATE BANKING

In 2005, the Bank’s corporate business demonstrated 
particularly good results. The loan portfolio was growing fast-
er than the market and the deposits portfolio was constantly 
increasing in volume. During the reporting year, the loan 
portfolio of large and medium corporate customers increased 
by LTL 658 million and topped LTL 2 billion landmark. The 
significant increase in the Bank’s commission income for set-
tlements, cash handling and other services provided to cor-
porate customers should also be pointed out.

In the market the Bank is seen as a reliable financial 
partner which understands corporate needs and offers flex-
ible, fast and competitive solutions. During the reporting year, 
the Bank focused particularly on financing of projects and 
construction. Loans issued for investment projects and real 
estate development amounted to over LTL 200 million. The 
Bank started successful implementation of the first projects 
supported by EU structural funds.

The Bank was further improving trade financing prod-
ucts and increased their sales amounts. Factoring turnover 

rose 3.5 times in 2005. The volumes of guarantees, letters of 
credits and documentary collection were increasing, too.

In 2006, the Bank’s corporate loan portfolio is expected 
to continue gradually increasing. Special attention will be 
paid to developing long-term relationships with the custom-
ers. Cross-selling will be increased by offering a wide range 
of products of the subsidiaries as well as retail products to 
corporate customers. Money market fund, bond issues of the 
Bank as well as other treasury products will offer excellent 
opportunities for the customers to make profitable invest-
ments of free resources.

The Norwegian capital will strengthen the Bank’s capi-
tal base and reduce funding costs. The experience of DnB 
NOR bank and interests of the financial group’s customers 
in Lithuania will enable the Bank to offer new products to 
the market and to attract new customers. The potential of 
the Bank’s shareholders creates opportunities for the Bank 
to finance large corporate projects at competitive terms either 
independently or within DnB NORD banking group.
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BRANCH NETWORK

In 2005, cancellation of the legal status of the Bank 
branches resulted in a new business management model of 
the Bank’s network which provides for more efficient manage-
ment of retail business processes and increases flexibility.

 The Bank services its customers in 85 outlets throughout 
Lithuania. In the reporting year, the Bank focused on optimi-
sation of the Bank’s network by establishing customer service 
sub-branches in business friendly locations and by closing 
non-performing sub-branches operating in limited markets. 
As a result of the network optimisation in 2005, a new cus-
tomer service sub-branch was opened in Panevėžys, two new 
sub-branches were opened in Kaunas, while three inefficient 
sub-branches were closed. Three customer service sub-
branches were moved to new premises in business friendlier 
locations in Klaipėda, Kaunas and Alytus, and a customer 
service sub-branch in Klaipėda was refurbished to meet the 
standards of establishing the bank outlets (Akropolis shop-

ping centre). The customer service and working conditions 
have been improved in nine customer service sub-branches 
in major towns. 

The aforementioned changes in the network will enhance 
its functionality and improve the overall quality of the Bank’s 
network. In 2005, the ATM network was further renewed and 
developed. During the year, six new ATMs were installed (five 
of them near the new, reshaped sub-branches), three ATMs 
were relocated by installing them in business friendlier loca-
tions, and five ATMs were uninstalled.

At the end of 2005, the Bank operated 138 ATMs pro-
viding service in the country’s largest ATM network. Due to 
cooperation with SEB Vilniaus bankas, the Bank’s customers 
are served under the same terms in 382 ATMs. At the end of 
2005, there were a total 1056 ATMs operating in Lithuania.

PAYMENT CARDS

The Bank ranked fourth among the Lithuanian banks by 
number and turnover of payment cards. At the end of 2005, 
the Bank had 297 thousand payment cards outstanding and 
held 9.61 percent of the payment cards market in Lithuania. 
Its payment cards portfolio was dominated by debit payment 
cards that made 98 percent of all payment cards issued by 
the Bank.

During the reporting year the Bank:

•   was authorised by VISA Europe to start the issuance of 
modern chip payment cards; 

•  started issuing co-branded payment cards together 
with the largest Lithuanian retail chain Maxima: debit cards 
Visa Electron and credit cards Visa Classic;

•   was licensed to service VISA payment cards in compa-
nies providing products and services. 

Total turnover of payment cards issued by the Bank in-
creased during the reporting year from LTL 1.12 billion up to 
LTL 1.57 billion. The debit card turnover amounted to LTL 1.53 
billion, while the credit card turnover was LTL 37.9 million.

2004 2005 Change (%)

Payment cards (in ‘000) 309 297 - 4

ATM (units) 137 138 0.7

Balances on accounts (LTL million) 156.93 227.43  44.9

Turnovers on payment card accounts (LTL million) 1117.5 1568.9 40.4

VIRTUAL BANKING

In 2005, the Bank introduced the virtual banking system 
of new generation that enabled increasing and further devel-
opment of the Bank’s internet banking service INTERNETO 
LINIJA to make it more functional and customer friendly.

The users of INTERNETO LINIJA were offered a faster 
service, larger variety of transactions, wider supply of prod-
ucts and information about services, salaries, crediting in 
payment card accounts as well as the opportunity to create, 

save and print statements from accounts or payment docu-
ments in a format convenient to the customer. As a result, the 
number of virtual banking users almost doubled (up to LTL 
120 thousand) in the reporting year. Compared to the year 
2004, the Bank increased its virtual banking users market 
share by 2.1 percentage points (up to 9.18 percent), while 
the amount of transactions executed via virtual banking 
channels rose to 72 percent during the year.
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Information technologies

The Bank is devoting appropriate attention and invest-
ments to development of information technologies (IT) as 
necessary support function for business development. Essen-
tial IT projects of 2005 included integration of payment cards 
and the Bank’s operations systems, projects on modernisa-
tion of the back-up infrastructure and e-banking system.

In 2006, the Bank will continue ensuring similar pace of 
the information technologies development in relation to es-
sential and resource consuming projects of harmonisation 
(Euro introduction, Basel II). We also aim at deepening coop-
eration within DnB NORD group in order to optimise IT man-
agement and to coordinate development of new perspective 
technologies. 

RELATIONS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

ACTIVITIES ON CAPITAL AND MONEY MARKETS

With the aim to ensure limits of financial instruments for 
successful treasury operations and trade financing as well as 
for attracting short-term and medium-term credit resources, 
the Bank continued developing and strengthening corre-
spondent relations with foreign and local banks and other 
credit institutions. In 2005, the Bank also expanded the range 
of instruments for attracting funds and further strengthened 
its positions in money and capital markets. 

The Bank met its short term funding needs by using 
money market lines issued by other banks. At the end of 
2005, the money market lines issued to the Bank by other 
banks amounted to LTL 1.19 billion.

To meet its long-term and medium-term funding needs 
to support its rapid growth, the Bank issued bonds and bor-
rowed on the interbank market. In 2005, the Bank signed 

three long-term loans agreements with foreign financial in-
stitutions totalling EUR 135.5 million and issued two debt 
securities issues. 

In March 2005, the Bank signed a three-year EUR 23 
million loan agreement with Raiffeisenlandesbank Oberös-
terreich AG, Baden-Württembergische Bank AG and DnB 
NOR Bank ASA, in April – a three-year EUR 12.5 million loan 
agreement with Bayerische Landesbank, and in November 
– a two-year EUR 100 million loan agreement with Norddeut-
sche Landesbank Luxembourg S.A.

In February 2005, the Bank signed a ten-year  EUR 2.5 
million subordinated loan agreement with Stiftung der NORD/
LB und der Öffentlichen Versicherung für Braunschweig, 
and in April 2005 this amount strengthened the Bank’s Tier 
II capital.

With the interest rates remaining low, the role of capital 
market in attracting funding resources to the Bank remained 
to be growing. In March 2005, the Bank issued LTL 50 mil-
lion face value fixed rate bonds, and in November the Bank 
registered two borrowing programs allowing the issuance of 
bonds up to LTL 250 million. According to LTL 80 million 
equity and commodity indices linked bonds program, EUR 3 
million bond issue linked to Dow Jones Euro STOXX 50 was 
placed in December 2005. At the end of 2005, the total face 
value of outstanding bonds issued by the Bank amounted to 
LTL 441 million.

In 2005, the Bank also strengthened its positions in 
investment banking, its services offered to companies and 
individual investors. The Bank remained among the market 
leaders in trading fixed income financial instruments and 
providing consulting services to corporate investors by also 
increasing the number of retail customers. The success-
ful participation of the Bank in placement of LTL 20 million 
bonds issue of APB Apranga was a significant project  in cor-
porate services.

In corporate finance the Bank expanded both the range 

of services and the customer service markets. In 2005, the 
Bank began its investment banking operation in Latvia and 
Estonia. In 1st half of 2005, contacts were established with 
Scandinavian investment banks that helped reach investors 
from these countries.

The Bank also successfully entered the market of public 
and private partnership deals which becomes more favour-
able thanks to strengthening local capital, changing priori-
ties of investors and adequate legal framework. In 2005, the 
Bank consulted customers in preparing the financial plan 
for the project on transport infrastructure concession, first in 
Lithuania, and organised financing of this project by attract-
ing a 25-years’ loan – first loan issued to a private business 
entity with such maturity.

To meet the short-term investment needs of corporates, 
the Bank focused on more sophisticated financial instru-
ments that generate higher added value to the customer. In 
2005, the Bank implemented the automatic scheme for in-
vesting overnight deposits and money market fund (SWEEP) 
as well as the scheme of floating interest rates on account 
balances.
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Risk management at the Bank aims at ensuring a suf-
ficient return on equity following the conservative risk man-
agement policy. Risk related activities of the Bank are strictly 
limited by the applicable system of limits. The limits are set 
and monitored centrally at the group level. While implement-
ing an advanced risk management policy the Bank aims not 
only at minimising potential risk but also at improving pricing 
and achieving efficient capital distribution. In order to assess 
possible losses resulting from liquidity, exchange rate, inter-
est rate, operational, equity investment, and credit risks the 
Bank introduced a quarterly Stress Testing. Standard, possi-
ble and worst case scenarios are used for the risk capital and 
expected risk calculations.

The main risk management principle is to separate the 
function of managing all types of risks from risk assuming, i.e. 
from the front-office units.

In 2005, upon joining DnB NORD group, the Bank started 
implementing advanced risk management and control meth-
ods used at Norway’s  DnB NOR Bank ASA. 

In 2005, the Basel Capital Accord (Basel II) project was 
carried out for the third year in the Bank. Next year the project 
milestones will be coordinated with Bank DnB NORD. 

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk to incur losses due to defaults of bor-
rowers towards the Bank. Credit risk is the most significant 
kind of risk in the risk structure of the Bank. The Stress Test-
ing results show that the Bank’s probable loss resulting from 
the credit risk would make about 72 percent of all probable 
losses. 

The main target of the lending activity is maintaining the 
structure and quality of the loan portfolio to ensure the Bank’s 
profitability in both short-term and long-term perspective.

The risk degree of both separate customers and business 
sectors is monitored on a regular basis in order to avoid high 
concentration risk.

Large loan approvals may be made only by a collegial 
body of a certain competence. The credit risk is managed 
by carrying out a thorough analysis of the customer before 

Risk structure of the Bank 2005 (%)
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Structure of corporate loan portfolio by industries 2005 (%)
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issuing credits and by monitoring thereof after the credit dis-
bursement. Risk is assessed by using the Bank’s developed 
standardised loan/customer scoring and rating instruments, 
which are constantly improved and tested for reliability follow-
ing the results of the analysis of historical data on the credit-
risk-related losses.

A possible concentration in certain industries on both the 
Bank and the Bank group level is restricted by the Bank’s 
internal lending limits on percentage and volumes set for in-
dividual industries. The lending limits to business sectors are 
set based on the assessment which is carried out by applying 
the industries rating model.   

In 2005, the Bank’s loan portfolio was well diversified by 
industries. During the reporting year, loans to construction 
and real estate development saw the highest increase (almost 
3 times) as well as hotels and restaurants (2.5 times) and 
transport, storage and distant communications sector (1.9 
times). The share of these three industries in the total corpo-
rate loan portfolio increased by 10 percentage points mostly 
on account of the processing industry sector the volumes 
of which were not rapidly increasing, therefore the share in 
the total corporate loan portfolio reduced by 5.6 percentage 
points.

In view of the new requirements of the Bank of Lithuania 
and IFAS 39, at the end of 2005 the Bank introduced new 
Loans Assessment Rules providing that the specific provisions 
to impaired large exposures are made based on individual 
assessment under the discounted cash flow method, while 
the specific provisions to impaired small exposures (most of 
the Bank’s retail customers: individuals, farmers, SMEs) are 
made based on historic data on actual losses of the respec-
tive segment. The new method enables precise assessment 
of the anticipated loss of a high number of the impaired small 
exposures and at the same time it provides a possibility to 
focus on the individual assessment of the impaired Bank’s 
largest borrowers under the discounted cash flow method.

Risk Management
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The good quality of the Bank’s loan portfolio is reflected 
in maintaining a low ratio of specific provisions to the loan 
portfolio, which in 2004 and 2005 respectively stood at 0.81 
percent and 0.64 percent. 

The Bank kept focusing on improving the credit risk of 
products intended for retail banking sector. In 2005, the 
Bank continued preparation to the planned implementation 
of the new empirically based standardised instruments for 
assessing credits and borrowers adjusted to consumer and 
mortgage credits to be carried out in 2006. In line with the 
implementation of Basel II project, the standardised instru-
ment for assessing SME borrowers and credits based on the 
analysis of historic data implemented in 2004 for the purpose 
of credit approval, pricing and monitoring will be improved 
in 2006 by considering the Regional model created by DnB 
NOR. In the reporting year, special attention was given to im-
proving the quantitative assessment of the risk costs related 
with individual borrower segments and their differentiation 
methods with focus on various retail banking segments.

In 2006, special attention will be given  to developing the 
credit risk database, which currently covers historic data on 
the credits and customers of the Bank since 2000. The bor-
rower assessment system will be harmonised with DnB NOR 
ASA ratings scale. The Bank’s new Loan Assessment Rules 
and credit risk stress testing will be improved. 

Market risk

Market risk is a risk to incur losses due to changes of the 
market parameters. The most significant risk to the Bank is 
interest rate risk, while foreign exchange risk is of lower sig-
nificance. In 2005, the Bank’s equity price risk was not sig-
nificant due to the low equity positions. The scenario model 
is used to assess the market risks by establishing the market 
risks resulting from changes of the market variables (interest 
rates, foreign exchange rates). The market risk is restrained 
by the limits determined by the Management Board of the 
Bank in the Trading and Banking Books. The decreasing limit 
principle is applied to these limits, i.e. in case of negative 
results, the limits decrease.

The limits are monitored on a daily basis. The market risk 
of the Bank group is assessed based on the same principles 
as that of the Bank.  

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of failure by the Bank to meet 
financial liabilities in due time and the risk to incur losses due 
to a sudden decrease in financial resources and increased 
cost of new funding intended to cover them. The liquidity risk 
management in the Bank is divided into:

- Current liquidity (up to 1 month), the aim of which is 
to meet the daily need for funds, to ensure the compliance 
with the reserve and liquidity requirements set by the Bank 
of Lithuania. This is the liquidity management based on the 

future cash flow analysis and planning of projected cash flow 
forecast;  

- Short-term liquidity management is based on 1 year fu-
ture cash flow analysis of the Bank and cash flow forecast; 

- Long-term liquidity management is based on the long-
term liquidity GAP analysis. 

Upon joining DnB NORD group, the Bank enjoys new 
possibilities of attracting funding at minimal costs, which will 
significantly reduce the Bank’s sensitivity to liquidity risk.     

Operational risk

The Bank defines the operational risk as a risk to suffer 
direct or indirect losses due to improper or inefficient internal 
procedures or processes, technologies, employee actions, 
or external factors. Legal and reputation risks are treated 
as component parts of the operational risk, whereas busi-
ness and strategic risks are treated as other risks. Legal risk 
is defined as a risk to incur losses due to the Bank’s cur-
rent or previous rights arising from failure to fulfil contracts 
or other agreements, proceedings or laws. The bank makes 
regular analysis of the legal environment and evaluates pos-
sible losses due to pending litigation on a quarterly basis. The 
Bank has not incurred any significant losses in relation to the 
legal risk so far and has no reason to believe that such losses 
might be incurred in the future.

The operational risk management in the Bank is regulat-
ed by the operational risk management policy setting minimal 
requirements for operational risk management and control, 
defining the methods for operational risk management, con-
trolling process, and responsibility levels.

The operational risk management is decentralised in 
the Bank, i.e. the Branch Managers are responsible for the 
operational risk management in their branches. The Bank 
manages the operational risk by minimising it, i.e. insurance, 
outsourcing (in this case specific provisions are made for the 
operational risk upon evaluation of the anticipated losses due 
to the operational risk events). The operational risk events 
and losses incurred are periodically reported to the Bank’s 
management and the parent bank.

Insurance in the Bank is treated as a component part of 
the operational risk management, therefore in 2005 the Bank 
insured against certain risks not only in the local market but 
also acquired the banking risks insurance in the international 
market.

In 2005, the system of declaring the operational risk 
losses was implemented on the Bank level, i.e. all operation-
al risk events are immediately registered and stored in the 
centralised system. The analysis of the data on operational 
risk events collected during the last 7 months shows that the 
highest losses incurred by the Bank were related to the staff 
and internal processes (respectively 46 and 30 percent), 
which may be identified as the main operational risk sources: 

31 December 2005

Total exposures, 
LTL million 

Impaired loans

Total value, LTL million Specific provisions, LTL million

Large exposures 2481.2 44.8 22.1

Small exposures (payment cards excluded)* 1534.3 24.7 3.6

* Mortgage loans to individuals up to LTL 0.5 million, consumer loans to individuals up to LTL 0.05 million, loans to farmers 
and SMEs up to LTL 0.3 million
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PERFORMANCE OF THE BANK SUBSIDIARIES

Operational risk losses in 2005 (%)
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In 2006, the concept of operational risk management and 
control system will be further developed and the operational 
risk management and control system will be implemented in 
the Bank: it is anticipated to implement the second method of 
operational risk inventory – self-assessment and, in process 
of preparation for implementation of Basel II project, to carry 
out segmentation of the business lines.

UAB NORD/LB LIZINGAS
In 2005, the business volumes of UAB NORD/LB Lizingas 

were growing faster than the country’s overall leasing market. 
In the reporting year, the company’s financial and opera-
tional leasing portfolio before provisions increased by 45.8 
percent and at the end of the reporting period amounted to 
LTL 328.1 million. The total leasing portfolio of the Lithuanian 
Leasing Association members went up by LTL 1.43 billion or 
36.9 percent (to LTL 5.32 billion).  

 The leasing portfolio market share of NORD/LB Lizingas 
increased by 0.4 percentage points (to 6.1 percent) within 
a year. By this indicator NORD/LB Lizingas ranked fourth 
among the eleven members of the leasing association and 
was one of the few leasing companies that managed to in-
crease its market share. During the reporting year, net profit 
of the company rose more than four times (up to LTL 1.73 
million) despite the fact that average weighted interest rates 
slightly decreased and their declining tendency seen in 2004 
was not overcome.  

Besides financial leasing, in 2005 UAB NORD/LB Lizin-
gas expanded the operational leasing services.  At the year-
end, the operational leasing portfolio of UAB NORD/LB Lizin-
gas stood at LTL 8.9 million. 

In 2005, UAB NORD/LB Lizingas focused on the service 
quality improvement, efficient and flexible financing of small 
and medium enterprises, improving of the credit risk man-
agement in the company, and developing of leasing sales 
through the representative offices and the network of media-
tors. Over 0.5 thousand agreements were concluded through 
the Bank network in the total amount of LTL 51.5 million dur-
ing the reporting period. 

During the reporting period the company signed over 1.5 
thousand of leasing agreements amounting to LTL 279.6 mil-
lion, including LTL 232.3 million of the financed amount. At 
the year-end, the number of customers of UAB NORD/LB 
Lizingas stood at 3.9 thousand with legal entities making 94 
percent in the structure. At the end of the reporting year, the 
number of the effective leasing agreements amounted to 3.5 
thousand with the average term of 3.9 years and the average 
value of LTL 90.5 thousand.  

During the reporting year, the company improved the 
return on equity ratios. In 2005, the ratio of accumulated 
provisions to total leasing portfolio improved. After tightening 
of agreement administration procedures, specific provisions 
decreased significantly: at the beginning of 2005 they made 
1.2 percent of the leasing portfolio and went down to 0.66 
percent by the year end.

In 2006, the company is planning to conclude about 
2000 new agreements in the total amount of LTL 300 mil-
lion, increase the leasing portfolio by LTL 200 million (to LTL 
524 million) and the market share to 8.5 percent. The port-
folio return will be enhanced by the growing service prices 
and more efficient administration of leasing agreements. The 
company’s plans are related with expansion of the operational 
leasing services not only for legal entities but also for natural 
persons as well as with the activity of the new representative 
offices in Lithuania and the new market in Kaliningrad region. 
It is planned to increase leasing sales through the Bank’s 
network and efficiently use the mediators’ services.

1

2

45

6

7

3

8

Cars 17.2
Real estate 18.6
Household appliances 0.2
Technological equipment 12.8
City transport 13.6
Agricultural machinery  2.0
Heavy vehicles  35.5
Office equipment  0.1

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Structure of UAB NORD/LB Lizingas portfolio by types of leased 
assets (%)



15

Performance of pension and investment funds managed by UAB NORD/LB Investicijų Valdymas in 2005:
Fund Brief investment strategy Increase in 2005 (%)

2nd pillar pension funds

Maximum return NORD/LB 3 Equities up to 50% 10.1

Increased return NORD/LB 2 Equities up to 25% 5.99

Conservative NORD/LB 1 Governmental debt securities 2.65

3rd pillar pension fund

NORD/LB additional pension Equities up to 50% 9.72

Other investment funds

NORD/LB money market fund Short-term debt securities and deposits 1.85

NORD/LB bonds fund Debt securities 0.14  (since 28 11 2005)

UAB NORD/LB INVESTICIJŲ VALDYMAS
UAB NORD/LB Investicijų Valdymas is the fifth largest as-

sets management company in Lithuania by volumes of the 
managed assets. At the end of 2005, the assets managed by 
the company totalled LTL 50.7 million.
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Structure of managed assets as at 31 12 2005 (%)

In 2005, the number of customers of NORD/LB 2 pension 
funds rose by 17.6 percent (up to 40.8 thousand).

During 2005, the assets of 3rd pillar pension fund almost 
tripled by the amount of LTL 4.3 million. In 2006, the com-
pany is planning to attract additional LTL 7 million.

In November 2005, a new NORD/LB bonds fund was es-
tablished that is mostly investing in bonds issued in euro and 
euro-linked currencies. Investments in NORD/LB bonds fund 
is a profitable and secure alternative to time deposits for indi-
viduals and corporate customers.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BANKAS NORD/LB LIETUVA AB

AUDITOR’S REPORT

1. We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Bankas Nord/LB Lietuva AB (“the Bank”) and its consolidated 
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) as at 31 December 2005 and the related statements of income, cash flows and changes 
in shareholders’ equity for the year then ended. The financial statements set out on pages 7 - 54 and the performance report 
set out on pages 4 - 6 are the responsibility of the Bank’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audit and to assess whether the information disclosed in the performance report is consis-
tent with the financial statements.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing as issued by the International Fe-
deration of Accountants. Those Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence sup-
porting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our 
work with respect to the performance report was limited to checking  it within the aforementioned scope and did not include 
a review of any information other than that drawn from the audited accounting records of the Bank. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank and the Group as 
at 31 December 2005 and of the results of their operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the 
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted for use in the European Union.

4. We did not identify material inconsistencies in the performance report with the audited financial statements.

On behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers UAB

Christopher C. Butler 
Partner

Vilnius, Republic of Lithuania 
15 February 2006

PricewaterhouseCoopers UAB
J, Jasinskio 16B

LT-01112 Vilnius, Lithuania
Telephone +370 (5) 239 2300

Facsimile +370(5)2392301
E-mail vilnius@lt.pwc.com

www.pwc.com/lt

Jurgita Kirvaitiene
Auditor’s Certificate 
No. 000447
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In the environment of stronger than ever competi-
tion the year 2005 was the best year in the AB Bankas 
NORD/LB Lietuva history profit-wise. In the reporting 
year AB Bankas NORD/LB Lietuva according to Inter-
national accounting standards earned a net profit of LTL 
43.04 million thanks to a rapidly increasing customer 
base, fast rising loan portfolio and further improvement 
of the Bank’s operating efficiency. The organic growth 
of the Bank was also ensured by rational allocation of 
the Bank’s resources and balanced risk management 
policy.

In 2005 the Bank’s assets topped LTL 5 billion 
benchmark for the first time in the Bank’s history and 
the Bank firmly held its position among the country’s 
top three banking institutions. The assets of AB Bankas 
NORD/LB Lietuva rose 42 percent year-on-year to LTL 
5.13 billion as at the end of December, up from LTL 
3.62 billion a year ago. The asset growth is largely at-
tributed to a 51 percent loan portfolio to individuals and 
corporate growth (up to LTL 3.75 billion).

The corporate loan portfolio of AB Bankas NORD/LB 
Lietuva rose 46 per cent year-on year to LTL 2.25 billion 
as at the end of 2005. The growth resulted from a particu-
larly increased financing of furniture and wood processing 
industry, food processing companies, wholesale and retail 
business and real estate projects. The Bank NORD/LB 
Lietuva will this year continue to focus on financing of resi-
dential housing construction in all major cities of Lithua-
nia as well as small and medium size businesses. The 
Bank will also pay prime attention to partnership projects 

Report on the performance of the Bank

of public and private sectors thus creating higher value 
added to municipalities - the Bank’s long-term partners. 

The Bank’s loan portfolio to individual customers 
had risen by LTL 562 million to LTL 1.5 billion during 
2005, the increase reflecting not only the increasing 
purchasing power and positive expectations of the cus-
tomers but also a positive impact of client loyalty pro-
gramme as well as competitive lending terms offered 
by NORD/LB Lietuva Bank.

The centering on product and service quality to 
comply with the changing needs of the customers 
helped the Bank to augment the number of customers 
by about a fifth in 2005 (up to 499 thousand). A rapid 
development of NORD/LB Lietuva Internet banking is 
worth pointing out. Over the reporting year, the number 
of the Bank’s Internet banking customers increased 
82 per cent (to 120 thousand users) while the average 
turnover of each payment card issued by the Bank rose 
18.6 percent year-on-year (to LTL 5100). In 2006 the 
Bank intends to strengthen its position in retail bank-
ing market by developing new banking products and 
services and investing into further improvement of cus-
tomer service quality.

Over the reporting year the Bank continued to in-
vest in training of the employees. The financial results 
achieved indicate that the strategy pays off as it allows 
to use the opportunities offered by the growing market 
better and gives a stronger foothold for business deve-
lopment in the future. The Bank intends to continue in-
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bonds linked to the European blue chip index – Dow 
Jones EURO STOXX 50. The Bank also lead-managed 
the LTL 20 million bond of Lithuania‘s largest clothing 
retailer Apranga. The issuance of debt securities let the 
Bank to offer its clients a wider range of investment 
possibilities and also diversify the Bank’s financing 
base. As at the end of 2005 the Bank had outstanding 
bonds with book value of LTL 441 million.

The spectrum of services offered by the Bank 
was enlarged through cooperation with its 100 per 
cent owned subsidiaries. The Bank’s subsidiary UAB 
NORD/LB Lizingas augmented its leasing portfolio by 
46 percent (up to LTL 324 million) in 2005 and earned 
a net profit of LTL 1.8 million. UAB NORD/LB Lizingas 
increased its local market share to 6.1 percent in 2005 
(5.8 per cent as at the end of 2004) and opened its first 
representative office abroad in Kaliningrad (Russia). 

The UAB NORD/LB Investicijų Valdymas held 6 
percent of Lithuania’s market in terms of second-pillar 
pension fund participants. The investments to its third-
pillar pension fund grew almost three times to LTL 5.7 
million. Total assets under UAB NORD/LB Investicijų 
Valdymas management stood at LTL 50.7 million litas 
as at the end of 2005 and the company’s reported 
result for last year was LTL 0.5 million loss, as it was 
planed.

In 2005 AB Bankas NORD/LB Lietuva raised LTL 
73.88 million through the new share issue that fur-
ther strengthened the Bank’s capital base. The Bank‘s 

vesting in annual customer satisfaction surveys to align 
adequately staff training programs and progress with 
employee loyalty programs. In the reporting year the 
number of the Bank’s employees averaged 1016.

In 2005, the Bank earned LTL 102.2 million in net 
interest income, representing a 29 per cent rise year-
on-year despite a decline in interest margins and con-
sequently lower profitability of the total loan portfolio. 
The Bank’s net commission income rose by 23.6 per 
cent (to LTL 41 million) thanks to more intense cross 
selling of value-added banking products and services.

The rational distribution of the available resources 
have helped to reduce the Bank’s operating expenses 
by LTL 3.1 million to LTL 94 million despite fast busi-
ness growth. As at the end of 2005 the Bank’s return 
on equity (ROE) rose to 18.4 per cent, up from 10.5 
percent as at the end of 2004 while the cost/income 
ratio went down to 67.7 percent from 91 percent as at 
the end of 2004. 

The Bank’s deposits and letters of credit rose by 
LTL 657.3 million to LTL 2.6 billion as at the end of 
2005. The deposit structure suggests the Bank has 
been increasingly used as a transaction bank.

The Bank NORD/LB Lietuva, a principal participant 
of Lithuania‘s debt securities market has successfully 
placed a 3-year LTL 50 million face value bond with a 
fixed interest rate (3.25 per cent). The Bank also of-
fered to the market its 3-year EUR 3 million face value 
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NORD/LB Lietuva share capital registered with the 
Register of Legal Entities is LTL 234.11 million. Dur-
ing the reporting period the Bank carried out its busi-
ness through 85 customer service outlets throughout 
the country and was not engaged in the Bank’s equity 
share trading nor traded the stock of its subsidiaries.

Due to the proper risk management policy the Bank 
met all prudential requirements of the Bank of Lithua-
nia. Fitch Ratings, the international rating agency, has 
evaluated the progress and business efficiency demon-
strated by NORD/LB Lietuva during the reporting year, 
and on 6 February 2006 upgraded the individual rating 
to D and outlook of the long-term borrowing rating A- 
from stable to positive as well as affirmed short-term 
rating at F2 and support rating at 1. 

In 2005 the shareholders’ structure of the Bank 
NORD/LB Lietuva has changed after Bank DnB NORD 
A/S registered in Denmark became the Bank’s largest 
shareholder late last year. The Bank DnB NORD A/S was 
established by German bank Norddeutsche Landesbank 
Girozentrale (NORD/LB) and the largest Norwegian bank 
DnB NOR Bank ASA. On December 20 NORD/LB trans-
ferred 51 per cent shares of the Bank DnB NORD A/S 
to Norwegian bank DnB NOR Bank ASA providing 51 

percent of all voting shares in general meeting of share-
holders of the Bank DnB NORD A/S. Thereby Norwe-
gian bank DnB NOR Bank ASA acquired indirect control 
of AB Bankas NORD/LB Lietuva whereas the Bank DnB 
NORD A/S owns 93.11 percent shares of AB Bankas 
NORD/LB Lietuva.

We strongly believe that a combined experience, 
strong funding base and business know-how of two well 
established partners will provide for NORD/LB Lietu-
va’s further rapid advance. This year we plan to invest-
ment in further upgrades of the Bank’s IT systems, the 
Bank’s re-branding campaign including expenses for 
adjusting the Bank’s activities for Lithuania’s planned 
litas/euro shift that we strongly support. Despite the 
planned one-off spending increase we are targeting to 
earn in 2006 a net profit in line with the 2005 result.

On behalf of the Management Board of NORD/LB 
Lietuva I would like to thank all customers, employees 
and shareholders of the Bank for confidence, good 
cooperation and contribution. We believe that through 
combined efforts we will continue successful business 
development this year consistently implementing our 
main goal - to become the country’s leading bank in 
terms of service quality. 

On behalf of the Management Board of the Bank

Werner Schilli
Chairman of the 
Management Board
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THE GROUP AND BANK INCOME STATEMENT

         Year ended

31 December 2005 31 December 2004

Notes Group Bank Group Bank

Interest income 175,007 166,377 127,951 122,027

Interest expense (68,518) (64,179) (45,097) (42,775)

Net interest income 1 106,489 102,198 82,854 79,252

Fee and commission income 53,752 51,565 42,100 41,224

Fee and commission expense (10,558) (10,528) (8,619) (8,031)

Net interest, fee and commission income 2 149,683 143,235 116,335 112,445

Net gain on operations with securities and financial 
instruments 3 1,315 1,313 1,187 1,177

Net foreign exchange gain 6,443 6,399 7,153 7,072

Provisions for other assets and contingent liabilities 4 1,064 820 (956) (623)

Other income 5 9,062 8,595 5,853 4,870

Impairment losses on loans 6 (4,647) (4,831) 11,278 11,337

Operating income 162,920 155,531 140,850 136,278

Operating expenses 7 (98,766) (94,088) (100,767) (97,173)

Loss on sale of discontinuing operations - - (1,127) (1,127)

Other expenses 8 (21,617) (20,260) (18,527) (17,437)

Profit  before tax 42,537 41,183 20,429 20,541

Income tax 9 1,671 1,857 (63) -

Net profit 44,208 43,040 20,366 20,541

Earnings per share (in LTL per share)

Basic 10 20.25 9.99

Diluted 10 20.25 9.99

The accounting policies and notes on pages 12 to 56 are on integral pont of these financial statements
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THE Group AND bank BalanCE SHEET

31 December 2005 31 December 2004

Notes Group Bank Group Bank

Assets

Cash and balances with central banks 11 339,610 339,604 224,100 224,099

Treasury bills 12 19,615 19,615 15,032 14,587

Due from other banks and financial institutions   13 234,862 456,570 386,392 447,068

Trading securities 14 54,566 54,566 127,845 127,845

Derivative financial instruments 15 2,011 2,011 866 866

Loans 16 3,749,607 3,749,607 2,475,965 2,475,800

Finance lease receivables 17 317,998 - 215,858 -

Securities available-for-sale 18 247,225 246,218 89,021 88,295

Securities held-to-maturity 18 143,512 143,512 107,969 107,969

Investments in subsidiaries 19 - 6,200 - 6,200

Intangible assets 20 3,915 3,778 4,339 4,236

Property and equipment 21 98,109 88,496 108,141 100,127

Deferred tax asset 9 8,178 8,000 6,083 6,000

Other assets 22 37,927 10,664 17,840 11,731

Total  assets 5,257,135 5,128,841 3,779,451 3,614,823

Liabilities

Due to other banks and financial institutions 23 1,684,074 1,583,203 1,066,618 908,755

Derivative financial instruments 15 337 337 1,666 1,666

Due to customers 24 2,624,625 2,624,625 1,967,361 1,967,361

Debt securities in issue 25 440,814 440,814 396,579 396,752

Special and lending funds 26 12,659 12,659 10,917 10,917

Other liabilities 27 64,114 39,061 32,175 26,441

Subordinated loans 28 99,658 99,658 90,862 90,862

Total liabilities 4,926,281 4,800,357 3,566,178 3,402,754

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital 29 268,999 268,999 195,117 195,117

Retained earnings 29 60,146 57,840 16,437 15,298

Other reserves 30 1,709 1,645 1,719 1,654

Total shareholders equity 330,854 328,484 213,273 212,069

Total liabilities and equity 5,257,135 5,128,841 3,779,451 3,614,823

J. Šaučiūnienė

Chief Accountant
 

W. Schilli

President

The accounting policies and notes on pages 12 to 56 are on integral pont of these financial statements
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GROUP  STATEMENT OF cHANGES IN  SHAREHOLDERS‘ EQUITY

Share 
capital

Share 
pre-

mium

Reserve 
capital

Fixed 
assets 
reva-

luation 
reserve

Financial 
assets 
reva-

luation 
reserve

Man-
datory 

reserve

Retained 
earnings

Total

Previously reported Balance at  
1 January 2004 176,585 - 2,816 2,405 - - (6,565) 175,241

Adjustment of equity investments 
(effect of IAS 27 changes) - - - - - 39 (39) -

Adjustment of available for sale securities 
revaluation (effect of IAS 39 changes) - - - - 1,209 - (1,209) -

Adjusted Balance at 1 January  2004 176,585 - 2,816 2,405 1,209 39 (7,813) 175,241

Increase of share capital 18,532 - - - - - - 18,532

Transfer to retained earnings - - (2,816) - - - 2,816 -

Transfer from revaluation reserve on
tangible assets sold or fully
depreciated -

-
- (1,067) - - 1,067 -

Net changes in available for sale 
securities revaluation - - - - (866) - (866)

Net profit for the year - - - - - - 20,366 20,366

Adjusted Balance at 31 December 
2004 195,117 - - 1,338 343 39 16,436 213,273

Increase of share capital 38,993 34,889 - - - - - 73,882

Transfer to mandatory reserve - - - - - 853 (853) -

Transfer from revaluation reserve on
tangible assets sold or fully
depreciated - - - (355) - - 355 -

Net changes in available for sale 
securities revaluation - - - - (509) - - (509)

Net profit for the year - - - - - - 44,208 44,208

Balance at 31 December 2005 234,110 34,889 - 983 (166) 892 60,146 330,854

The accounting policies and notes on pages 12 to 56 are on integral pont of these financial statements
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bANK  STATEMENT OF cHANGES IN  SHAREHOLDERS‘ EQUITY

Share 
capital

Share 
premium

Reserve 
capital

Fixed assets 
revaluation 

reserve

Financial 
assets 
reva-

luation 
reserve

Manda-
tory 

reserve

Retained 
earnings

Total

Previously reported Balance at 
1 January 2004 176,585 - 2,816 2,405 - - (6,565) 175,241 

Adjustment of equity investments 
(effect of IAS 27 changes) - - - - - - (1,327)

(1,327)

Adjustment of available for sale 
securities revaluation (effect of 
IAS 39 changes) - - - - 1,234 - (1,234) -

Adjusted Balance at 1 January 2004 176,585 - 2,816 2,405 1,234 - (9,126) 173,914

Increase of share capital 18,532 - - - - - - 18,532

Transfer to retained earnings - - (2,816) - - - 2,816 -

Transfer from revaluation reserve on
Tangible assets sold or fully
Depreciated - - - (1,067) - - 1,067 -

Adjustment of equity investments 
(effect of IAS 27 changes) - - - - - - 228 228

Net changes in available for sale 
securities revaluation - - - - (918) - - (918)

Net profit for the year - - - - - - 20,313 20,313

Adjusted balance at 31 December 
2004 195,117 - - 1,338 316 - 15,298 212,069

Increase of share capital 38,993 34,889 - - - - - 73,882

Transfer to mandatory reserve - - - - - 853 (853) -

Transfer from revaluation reserve on
tangible assets sold or fully
depreciated - - - (355) - - 355 -

Net changes in available for sale 
securities revaluation - - - (507) - - (507)

Net profit for the year - - - - - - 43,040 43,040

Balance at 31 December 2005 234,110 34,889 - 983 (191) 853 57,840 328,484

The accounting policies and notes on pages 12 to 56 are on integral pont of these financial statements
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THE Group AND bank CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year ended

31 December 2005 31 December 2004

Notes Group Bank Group Bank

Operating activities

Receipt (payments)

   Interest receipt 161,839 153,915 116,493 112,118

   Interest payments (49,625) (44,774) (28,984) (28,274)

   Collected previously written-off loans 10,632 10,632 14,437 14,437

   Net receipt from operations in foreign currency 5,398 5,366 5,883 5,865

   Net receipt from operations in treasury bills 1,764 1,764 2,315 2,305

   Fee and commission receipt 53,752 51,565 42,100 41,224

   Fee and commission payments (10,558) (10,528) (8,619) (8,031)

   Salaries and related payments (49,475) (47,459) (49,895) (48,024)

   Other payments (47,215) (46,045) (45,048) (45,210)

Net cash flow from operating profits before changes in operating assets 
and liabilities 76,512 74,436 48,682 46,410

(Increase) decrease in operating assets 

   (Increase) decrease in mandatory reserves with the central bank 51,820 51,820 (7,371) (7,371)

   (Increase) in loans to credit and financial institutions 224,367 63,194 (198,549) (132,976)

   (Increase) in loans granted (1,287,199) (1,287,532) (900,562) (900,937)

   (Increase) decrease in securities 4,382 3,937 33,130 18,985

   (Increase) in other short-term assets (123,984) (631) (65,190) 2,888

Change in operating assets (1,130,614) (1,169,212) (1,138,542) (1,019,411)

Increase (decrease) in liabilities 

   Increase in liabilities to credit and financial institutions 616,132 672,200 544,086 402,769

   Increase in deposits 657,136 657,136 396,385 396,385

   Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 30,179 11,964 (12,778) 11,684

Change in liabilities 1,303,447 1,341,300 927,693 810,838

Net cash flow from operating activities before profit tax 249,345 246,524 (162,167) (162,163)

Profit tax

Net cash flow from operating activities 249,345 246,524 (162,167) (162,163)

Investing activities

Acquisition of tangible and intangible assets (7,351) (4,491) (14,598) (10,857)

Disposal of tangible and intangible assets 3,578 3,466 3,607 3,298

Investments in securities and sale thereof, net (117,984) (117,704) (87,171) (89,288)

Dividends received 26 26

Interest received 8,599 8,562 9,823 8,340

Disposal of subsidiaries, net cash of disposed 13,502 13,502

Net cash flow from investing activities (113,158) (110,167) (74,811) (74,979)

Financing activities

Own debt securities issued 43,856 43,683 221,964 222,137

Increase in share capital 73,882 73,882 18,532 18,532

Cash flow from subordinated loans (4,812) (4,814) (2,165) (2,170)

Net cash flow from financing activities 112,926 112,751 238,331 238,499

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 249,113 249,108 1,353 1,357

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 240,477 240,476 239,124 239,119

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December                           33 489,590 489,584 240,477 240,476

The accounting policies and notes on pages 12 to 56 are on integral pont of these financial statements
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The name of AB Bankas NORD/LB Lietuva was regis-
tered on May 2, 2003 after the Bank’s previous name AB 
Lietuvos Žemės Ūkio Bankas was changed. The Bank as a 
joint stock company was registered at the Enterprise Register 
of the Republic of Lithuania on September 13, 1993. The 
Bank possesses a license issued by the Bank of Lithuania, 
which entitles to provide financial services established in the 
Law of the Republic of Lithuania on Banks and the Law of the 
Republic of Lithuania on Financial Institutions.

The Head Offices of the Bank and subsidiaries are lo-
cated in Vilnius, J. Basanavičiaus str. 26. At the end of the 
reporting period the Bank had 85 client service outlets, of 
which 15 customer service branches and 70 customer ser-
vice subbranches (2004: 46). As at 31 December 2005  the 
Bank had 1,030 employees (2004: 1,001). As at 31 Decem-
ber  2005  the  Group had 1,062 employees (2004: 1,026).

The Bank accepts deposits, issues loans, makes money 
transfers and documentary settlements, exchanges currencies 
for its clients, issues and processes debit and credit cards, is 
engaged in trade finance and is investing and trading in secu-
rities as well as provides other financial services established in 
the Law of the Republic of Lithuania on Banks and the Law of 
the Republic of Lithuania on Financial Institutions.

The Bank owns the following subsidiaries:

UAB Nord/LB Lizingas (finance and operating leasing 
activities), 

UAB Nord/LB Investicijų Valdymas (investment manage-
ment activities). 

As at 31 December 2005 the Bank owned 100% of the 
share capital of the UAB “NORD/LB Lizingas” and UAB 
“NORD/LB Investicijų valdymas”. Bank is the sole share-
holder of these companies from their establishment. 

As at 31 December 2005 2,053,861 number of the ordi-
nary registered Bank’s shares are involved in the Current tra-
ding List of Vilnius Stock Exchange and 410,455 the ordinary 
registered Bank’s shares are not involved into trading lists of 
the Stock exchange. As disclosed in Note 29, Share capital, 
Bank DnB NORD A/S (DK) is the single largest shareholder 
holding 93.11% of the Bank’s shares. The Bank DnB NORD, 
registered in Denmark, is a joint venture of the Norwegian 
largest Bank DnB NOR and the German Bank Norddeutsche 
Landesbank (NORD/LB).

GENERAL BACKGROUND
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The principal accounting policies adopted in the prepara-
tion of these financial statements are set out below. 

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Group and the Bank are 

prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards as adopted for use in European Union. The financial 
statements are prepared under the historical cost convention as 
modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale investment se-
curities, financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading 
and all derivative financial instruments and fixed assets. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with International Financial Reporting Standards require the 
use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 
the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on 
management’s best knowledge of current event and actions, 
actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates. 

IT systems, used in the Group, are not supporting cal-
culation of effective interest rates for each class of financial 
assets and liabilities.

These financial statements combine the consolidated finan-
cial statements for the Group and stand-alone financial state-
ments of the parent Bank. Such format of reporting was adopted 
to ensure consistency of presentation with the format prescribed 
by the Bank of Lithuania and applied for statutory reporting.

Amounts shown in these financial statements are pre-
sented in the local currency, Litas (LTL). Since 2 February 
2002 the exchange rate of the Litas was pegged to Euro at a 
rate of 3.4528 LTL = 1 EUR.

Following the changes of IAS 27 Consolidated and separate 
Financial Statement and IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recog-
nition and Measurement corresponding changes to the Group’s 
accounting policies regarding investments into subsidiaries and 
securities available for sale were made in the beginning of 2005 
together with retrospective adjustments in previous years. All 
changes in the accounting policies have been made in accord-
ance with transition provisions in the respective standards.

The adjustments of IAS 27 changes resulted in:

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

- Increase (decrease) in 
investments in subsidiaries - (1,273) - 228

- Increase (decrease) in net 
gain (loss) on investments in   
subsidiaries - (1,273) - 228

- Increase (decrease) in re-
tained earnings - (1,273) - 228

The adjustments of IAS 39 changes resulted in:

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

- Decrease in reserves (509) (507) (866) (918)

- Decrease of deffered tax (101) (101) - -

- Increase in net gain (loss) 
on operations with securities 610 608 866 918

- Increase in retained 
earnings 509 507 866 918

- Increase in basic earnings 
per share 0.23 - 0.42 -

The IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure is effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after January 2007. IFRS 7 was 
not applied in the Group for 2005. The Group plans to apply the 
standard for annual period beginning on 1 January 2007.

Critical accounting estimates
The Bank and the Group reviews its loan portfolios to as-

sess impairment at least on a quarterly basis. In determining 
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the in-
come statement, the Group makes judgements as to whether 
there is any observable data indicating that there is a mea-
surable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a 
portfolio of loans before the decrease can be identified with 
an individual loan in that portfolio. 

This evidence may include observable data indicating 
that there has been an adverse change in the payment sta-
tus of borrowers in a group, or national or local economic 
conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group. 
Management uses estimates based on historical loss experi-
ence for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective 
evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when 
scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and as-
sumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of 
future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differ-
ences between loss estimates and actual loss experience. 

Consolidation 

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Bank has the 

power to govern the financial and operating policies gene-
rally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of 
the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting 
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are con-
sidered when assessing whether the Bank controls another 
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on 
which control is transferred to the Bank. They are de-consoli-
dated from the date that control ceases. 

The purchase method of accounting is used to account 
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Bank. The cost of an 
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, 
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed 
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and 
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are 
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, 
irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess 
of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Bank’s 
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as 
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value 
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is 
recognised directly in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains 
on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Un-

Accounting policies
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realised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction pro-
vides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred. Account-
ing policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary 
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Bank.

Subsidiaries  in the stand-alone financial statements are 
accounted at cost – that is the income from the investment is 
recognized only to the extent that the bank receives distribu-
tions from accumulated profits of the investee arising after 
the date of acquisition. Distributions received in excess such 
profits are regarded as a recovery of investment and are re-
cognized as a reduction of the cost of the investment.

Foreign currency translation
All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 

currencies are translated into Lithuanian litas (LTL) at the of-
ficial rate of the Bank of Lithuania prevailing at the reporting 
period end. Gains and losses arising from this translation are 
included in the income statement for the period. All non-
monetary items are translated at historical rates.

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded 
at the rate ruling on the date of the transaction. Exchange differ-
ences arising from the settlement of transactions denominated 
in foreign currency are charged to the income statement at the 
time of settlement using the exchange rate ruling at that date.

Recognition of income and expenses
Interest income and expense are recognised in the in-

come statement on an accrual basis using the effective yield 
method based on the actual purchase price. The effective in-
terest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost 
of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the 
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. 
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts esti-
mated future cash payments or receipts through the expected 
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter 
period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or fi-
nancial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the 
Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms 
of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) 
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation in-
cludes all fees and points paid or received between parties to 
the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest 
rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. 

Loan origination fees are accounted for as an adjustment to 
the effective interest rate calculation for each issued loan sepa-
rately. Other commission fees, certain taxes and other similar 
income and expenses are recognised as gained or incurred.

Cash received during an accounting period which is not 
recognised as income of this period is shown in the balance 
sheet as deferred income (liabilities) and expenses made 
during an accounting period which are not recognised as 
expenses of an accounting period are shown in the balance 
sheet as deferred expenses (assets).

Taxation

Income tax
In accordance with the Lithuanian Law on Corporate Profit 

Tax, the current income tax rate is 15% on taxable income. 
Expenses related with taxation charges and included in these 
financial statements are based on calculations made by the 
management in accordance with Lithuanian tax legislation. 
Income tax rate valid for 2006 is 19%. 

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability 
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax 
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in 
the financial statements. Where an overall deferred taxation 
asset arises, this is only recognised in the financial state-
ments to the extent that its recoverability can be foreseen by 
the management as being probable.

Other taxes
Road tax of 1%, valid until 30 06 2005, is imposed on 

income from interest margin and on income on other ser-
vices. Real estate tax rate is 1% on the tax value of property, 
plant and equipment and foreclosed assets. These taxes are 
included in other expenses in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise the cash, other valu-

ables, correspondent bank account balances, correspondent 
account and one night deposits with the Bank of Lithuania 
and short-term treasury bills with the maturity term of less 
than three months. 

Financial assets
Financial assets are classified into 4 groups: financial as-

sets at fair value through profit and loss (the Group and the 
Bank has the only one sub-category here – held for trading), 
investments held to maturity, loans and receivables, financial 
assets available for sale.

Trading securities
Trading securities are securities which were acquired 

either for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations 
in price or dealer’s margin, or are securities included in a 
portfolio in which a pattern of short-term profit taking exists. 
Trading securities are initially recognised at fair value, which 
is based on quoted bid prices or derived from a discounted 
cash flow model if market price is unreliable measure. All 
related realised and unrealised gains and losses are included 
in net trading income. Interest earned whilst holding trading 
securities is reported as interest income. Dividends received 
are included in dividend income. 

All purchases and sales of trading securities that require 
delivery within the time frame established by regulation or 
market convention (‘regular way’ purchases and sales) are 
recognised at trade date, which is the date that the Group 
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Otherwise such trans-
actions are treated as derivatives until settlement occurs.

Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments including foreign exchange 

forwards, swaps, options (both written and purchased) and 
other derivative financial instruments are initially recognised in 
the balance sheet at their fair value. Fair values are obtained 
from quoted market prices and options pricing models as ap-
propriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is 
positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative. 

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instru-
ments, such as the conversion option in a convertible bond, 
are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and cha-
racteristics are not closely related to those of the host con-
tract and the host contract is not carried at fair value with 
unrealised gains and losses reported in income.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives held for trading 
are included in net trading income.
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Certain derivative transactions, while providing effective 
economic hedges under the Group’s risk management posi-
tions, do not qualify for hedge accounting under the specific 
rules in IAS 39 and are therefore treated as derivatives held for 
trading with fair value gains and losses reported in income.

Fair values of the derivative financial instruments are dis-
closed in Note 15.

Securities available for sale and held to maturity
Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-deriva-

tive financial assets that are designated as available for sale 
or are not classified as loans and receivables, held to maturity 
investments or financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss. Management determines the appropriate classification 
of its investments at the time of the purchase. 

Available for sale securities are initially recognised and are 
subsequently re-measured at fair value based on quoted bid 
prices or amounts derived from discounted cash flow models. 
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair 
value of securities classified as available-for-sale are recog-
nised directly in equity through the statement of changes in 
equity except for impairment losses and foreign exchange 
gains or losses. When the financial asset is derecognised 
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is 
recognised in profit or loss. However interest calculated using 
the effective interest rate is recognised in profit or loss.

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial 
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturi-
ties that the Group’s management has the positive intention 
and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments 
are initially recognised at fair value plus transactions costs 
and subsequently are measured at amortised cost using the 
effective yield method, less any provision for impairment. A 
financial asset is impaired if its carrying amount is greater 
than its estimated recoverable amount. 

Interest earned whilst holding securities is reported as in-
terest income. Dividends receivable are included separately 
in dividend income when a dividend is received. 

All regular way purchases and sales of securities are recog-
nised at trade date, which is the date that the Group commits 
to purchase or sell the asset. All other purchases and sales are 
recognised as derivative forward transactions until settlement. 

Reverse repurchase agreements
The securities purchased under agreements to resell are 

recorded as loans and advances to other banks or customers, 
as appropriate. The difference between sale and repurchase 
price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of the 
agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent 
to counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Reverse repurchase agreements are classified as held 
to maturity and are accounted for using the amortised cost 
method.

Loans
Loans originated by the Group by providing money di-

rectly to the borrower (or to a sub-participation agent at draw 
down) are categorised as loans and are carried at amortised 
cost. All loans and advances are recognised when cash is 
advanced to borrowers.

Impairment losses on loans, held to maturity in-
vestments, available for sale assets and provisions 
for other assets

Losses on loan and held to maturity investment impair-
ment is established if there is objective evidence that the 
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due. The amount 
of the impairment losses is the difference between the carry-
ing amount and the recoverable amount, being the present 
value of expected cash flows, including amounts recoverable 
from guarantees and collateral, discounted based on the in-
terest rate at inception.

In the case if investments classified as available for sale, 
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the se-
curity below its cost is considered in determining whether the 
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available 
for sale financial assets, the cumulative loss – measured as 
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair 
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previ-
ously recognised in profit or loss – is removed from equity 
and recognised in the income statement.

Intangible assets 
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated am-

ortisation. Intangible assets are amortised using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful life. 

Property and equipment
Property and equipment are held at historical cost plus 

revaluation less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is 
provided on a straight-line basis to write off proportionally the 
cost of each asset over its estimated useful life. 

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for 
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to 
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is grea-
ter than its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to 
sell and value in use. Gains and losses on disposals of fixed 
assets are determined by reference to their carrying amount 
and are charged to the income statement. 

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, 
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Asset maintenance costs are charged to the income state-
ment when they are incurred. Significant renewals of assets 
are capitalised and depreciated over the remaining useful life 
period of the improved asset.

Leases

Group company is the lessee
The leases entered by the Group are operating lease. The 

total payments made under operating leases are charged to 
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period 
of lease.

Group company is the lessor

Operating leases
Assets leased out under operating leases are included 

in fixed assets in the balance sheet. They are depreciated 
over their expected useful lives on a basis consistent with 
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similar owned fixed assets. Rental income is recognised on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance leases
When assets are held subject to a finance lease, the 

present value of the lease payments is recognised as a re-
ceivable. The difference between the gross receivable and 
the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned 
finance income. Lease income is recognised over the term 
of the lease using the net investment method (before tax), 
which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

Foreclosed assets
Assets repossessed from defaulted loan customers and 

other assets kept for sales are stated at the lower of cost and 
estimated market value, determined by the independent val-
uers or the Bank’s internal valuers.

Assets / funds under management and related 
liabilities

Assets under management include loans that are ma-
naged by the Bank in the name of the Lithuanian Ministry 
of Finance and the Lithuanian Ministry of Agriculture. Assets 
under management equal funds under management and are 
accounted for off-balance sheet. 

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, being 

their issue proceeds net of transaction costs incurred. Sub-
sequently borrowings are stated at amortised cost and any 
difference between net proceeds and the redemption value 
is recognised in the income statement over the period of the 
borrowings using the effective yield method.

Debt securities issued
Debt securities issued are recognised initially at fair value, 

being their issue proceeds net of transaction costs incurred. 
Subsequently debt securities issued are stated at amortised 
cost and any difference between net proceeds and the re-
demption value is recognised in the income statement over 
the period of the debt securities issued using the effective 
yield method.

Debt securities are recognised on the day of settlement.

Employee benefits

Social security contributions
The Group pays social security contributions to the state 

Social Security Fund (the Fund) on behalf of its employees 
based on the defined contribution plan in accordance with 
the local legal requirements. A defined contribution plan is 
a plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into 
the Fund and will have no legal or constructive obligations to 
pay further contributions if the Fund does not hold sufficient 
assets to pay all employees benefits relating to employee 
service in the current and prior period. The social security 
contributions are recognised as an expense on an accrual 
basis and are included within staff costs.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when an employee’s 

employment is terminated on initiative of employer or the 
employment is terminated  by mutual employee’s and em-
ployer’s agreement. The Group recognises termination be-
nefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminate 
the employment of current employees according to a detailed 

formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or to provide ter-
mination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage 
voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 
months after balance sheet date are discounted to present 
value. Termination benefits are included within staff costs in 
the income statement and within other liabilities in the bal-
ance sheet.

Segment reporting
A business segment is a group of assets and operations 

engaged in providing products or services that are subject 
to risks and returns that are different from those of other 
business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in 
providing products or services within a particular economic 
environment that are subject to risks and returns that are 
different from those of segments operating in other economic 
environments.

Provisions
Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the 

Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a re-
sult of past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow 
of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the 
amount has been reliably estimated.

Transfers between elements of shareholders equity
Transfers from fixed assets revaluation reserve to retained 

earnings are performed when related fixed asset is fully de-
preciated or sold. All transfers to retained earnings are made 
only after the approval of the shareholders.

Fiduciary activities
Assets and income arising thereon together with related 

undertakings to return such assets to customers are exclud-
ed from these financial statements where the Group acts in a 
fiduciary capacity such as nominee, trustee or agent.

Fair value of assets and liabilities
Fair value represents the amount at which an asset could 

be exchanged or a liability settled on an arm’s length basis. 
Where, in the opinion of the Board, fair values of financial as-
sets and liabilities differ materially from book values, such fair 
values are separately disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements.

Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net 

amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there 
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously.

Comparatives
Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclas-

sified to conform with changes in presentation in the current 
year. 
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Strategy in using financial instruments
The Bank’s and the Group’s activities are principally re-

lated to the use of financial instruments including derivatives. 
The Bank and the Group accepts deposits from customers 
and borrows from other financial institutions at both fixed 
and floating rates and for various periods of maturity and 
seeks to earn above average interest margins by investing 
these funds in high quality assets. The Bank and the Group 
seeks to increase these margins by consolidating short-term 
funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates whilst 
maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might 
fall due.

The Bank and the Group also seeks to raise its interest 
margins by obtaining above average margins, net of impair-
ment losses, through lending to commercial and retail bor-
rowers with a range of credit standings. Such exposures in-
volve not just on-balance sheet loans and advances but also 
guarantees and other commitments, such as letters of credit 
and performance, and other bonds. 

Capital adequacy
The capital adequacy ratio is calculated in accordance 

with the rules approved by the Bank of Lithuania, which are 
based on the Basel Committee recommendations (Basel I). 
The Bank of Lithuania requires local commercial banks to 
maintain a minimum capital adequacy ratio of 8%.

The capital adequacy ratios for the year 2005 are pre-
sented below (calculated based on the requirements for ac-
counting in banks in Lithuania):

Credit risk
The Group takes on exposure to credit risk which is the 

risk that a counter party will be unable to repay the amounts 
in full when due. The Group structures the levels of credit 
risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk 
accepted in relation to one borrower or groups of borrowers, 
and to the industry segments. Such risks are monitored on a 
rolling basis and are subject to an annual or more frequent 
review. The structures of borrowers and lessees by segment 
and type of assets are disclosed in Notes 16 and 17, respec-
tively.

Credit related commitments
The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure 

that funds are available to a customer as required. Guaran-
tees and letters of credit, which represent irrevocable assu-
rances that the Group will make payments in the event that 
a customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties, carry 
the same credit risk as loans. 

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions 
of authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans, gua-
rantees or letters of credit. With respect to them, the Group 
is potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total 
unused commitments. However, the likely amount of loss is 
less than the total unused amount since most commitments 
are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit 
standards. 

Liquidity risk
The Group is exposed to possible cash flows inconsis-

tency risk arising out of usage of available cash resources 
for further objectives: repayment of overnight deposits, cur-
rent accounts liabilities management, repayment of matu-
ring deposits, granting committed loans, guarantees, to fulfil 
margin and other liabilities related to derivatives. The Group 
does not maintain cash resources to meet all of these needs 
as experience shows that a minimum level of reinvestment 
of maturing funds can be predicted with a high level of cer-
tainty. 

Note 34 analyses assets and liabilities of the Bank into 
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period  

at balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The 
Group’s (Bank’s) liabilities on demand exceed assets with 
similar duration, however, the Bank’s liquidity ratio, calcula-
ted using the methodology approved by the Bank of Lithua-
nia, is 37.16 %, the Group’s liquidity ratio – 36.85 %. The 
Bank of Lithuania requires that the liquidity ratio should not 
be less than 30%. In the opinion of management of the Bank, 
the Group and Bank’s liquidity is sufficient to meet its opera-
ting needs.  Such risks are monitored on a rolling basis and 
are subject to annual or more frequent review.

Financial risk management 

Group Bank

31 
December 

2005 

31 
December 

2004 

31  
March  
2005

30  
June  

2005

30  
September 

2005 

31  
December  

2005 

Capital base 425,344 292,136 296,493 322,897 405,670 417,531

Risk weighted assets and off 
balance sheet items 4,036,008 2,507,051 2,690,937 2,937,587 3,272,275 3,910,959

Capital adequacy ratio 10.54 11.65 11.02 10.99 12.40 10.68
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Market risk
Market risk – is the risk that the Bank incurs losses as a 

consequence of changes of market variables (interest rates, 
foreign exchange rates, stock prices). Scenario model is used 
to evaluate market risk exposure. Sensitivity to changes in 
market variables is calculated using scenario model. Market 
risk is limited by the market risk limits, set by the Manage-
ment Board of the Bank. Self-consuming principle is applied 
to market risk limits – the limit decreases in case of negative 
result.

Currency risk
The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in 

the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial 
position and cash flows. Currency risk is the risk that the Bank 
incurs losses as a consequence of unfavorable changes in 
foreign exchange rates. Scenario model used for assessment 
of foreign exchange risk. Bank follows very conservative cur-
rency risk management policy. Currency risk is insignificant 
due to low volumes of open positions in foreign currencies. 
The Bank’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk 
is summarized in Note 35.

Interest rate risk 
The Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations 

in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on its financial 
position and cash flows. Interest rate risk is the risk that the 
Bank incurs losses as a consequence of unfavorable chang-
es in interest rates. Scenario model and interest rated gap 
method used for interest rate assessment and management 
in the Bank. Such risks are monitored on a rolling basis and 
are subject to annual or more frequent review The Bank’s 
exposure to interest rate risk is summarized in Note 36.

Operational risk
Upon normal business conditions operational risk exists in 

all Group activities. The Bank treats operational risk as the risk 
of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal procedures, 
people and technology, or from external events. In 2004 the 
Management Board approved Operational Risk management 
policy, where minimum requirements for management and 
controlling of operational risk in the Bank, methodology of 
operational risk management, the management process and 
responsibility levels were defined. Now the Bank is further de-
veloping the philosophy of operational risk management and 
control system and implementing the system of operational 
risk management and control. The Bank manages Operatio-
nal risk by mitigating the risk, i.e. insurance, by outsourcing, 
i.e. buying of services from third parties, and by making the 
provisions for operational risk.
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segment INFORMATION

Primary reporting format – business segments
The Group is organised into three main business segments: 
banking, leasing and investment management. In 2004, the 
Bank disposed of its investment in life and general insurance 
subsidiary undertakings thus exiting these business seg-

ments.  Transactions between the business segments are on 
normal commercial terms and conditions. Funds are ordi-
nary reallocated between segments, resulting in funding cost 
transfers disclosed in operating income. 

Year ended 31 December 2005

Banking Leasing Investment mgt Eliminations Group

Internal 4,551 (3,223) (481) (847) -

External 146,783 10,042 785 218 157,828 

Net income from the main operations 151,334 6,819 304 (629) 157,828

Internal (847) (215) (23) 1,085 -

External (81,202) (2,239) (686) (218) (84,345)

Operating expenses (82,049) (2,454) (709) 867 (84,345)

Depreciation and amortisation charges (12,039) (2,375) (7) - (14,421)

Internal 238 - - (238) -

External (16,301) (30) (89) (105) (16,525)

Net other income (expenses) (16,063) (30) (89) (343) (16,525)

Profit (loss) before  tax 41,183 1,960 (501) (105) 42,537

Income tax (42) (281) - - (323)

Change of deferred tax 1,899 95 - - 1,994

Net profit (loss) 43,040 1,774 (501) (105) 44,208

Total assets 5,128,841 357,002 2,291 (230,999) 5,257,135

Total liabilities 4,800,357 350,461 262 (224,799) 4,926,281

Shareholders’ equity 328,484 6,541 2,029 (6,200) 330,854

Capital additions 4,490 5,368 129 - 9,987
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Year ended 31 December 2004

Banking Leasing Insurance
Life In-sur-

ance
Invest-

ment mgt
Elimina-

tions Group

Internal 4,596 (3,304) (12) (12) (413) (855) -

External 114,971 8,230 684 195 512 (1,044) 123,548

Net income from the main operations 119,567 4,926 672 183 99 (1,899) 123,548

Internal (879) (172) (68) (16) (21) 1,156 -

External (82,466) (1,969) (3,004) (258) (676) 3,427 (84,946)

Operating expenses (83,345) (2,141) (3,072) (274) (697) 4,583 (84,946)

Depreciation and amortisation charges (13,828) (1,992) (165) (11) (1) 176 (15,821)

Internal 193 - (41) - - (152) -

External (2,046) (318) 1,367 310 (93) (1,572) (2,352)

Net other income (expenses) (1,853) (318) 1,326 310 (93) (1,724) (2,352)

Profit (loss) before  tax 20,541 475 (1,239) 208 (692) 1,136 20,429

Income tax - (140) - - - - (140)

Change of deferred tax - 77 - - - - 77

Net profit (loss) 20,541 412 (1,239) 208 (692) 1,136 20,366

Total assets 3,614,823 232,747 - - 2 629 (70,748) 3,779,451

Total liabilities 3,402,754 227,980 - - 97 (64,653) 3,566,178

Shareholders’ equity 212,069 4,767 - - 2 532 (6,095) 213,273

Capital additions 10,858 3,568 - - 1 - 14,427

Secondary reporting format – geographical segments
Geographical concentrations of the Group assets and liabilities were as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2005 Total assets Total liabilities

Lithuania (home country)   4,945,156 3,023,131

Germany 54,246 964,565

Luxemburg 254 432,523

Austria 32,597 183,330

Poland 35,432 86,566

United Kingdom 32,739 38,629

Other foreign countries 156,711 197,537

Total 5,257,135 4,926,281

Year ended 31 December 2004 Total assets Total liabilities

Lithuania (home country) 3,444,890 2,295,854

Germany 114,897 925,432

Luxemburg 9 86,408

Austria 26,794 117,563

Poland 10,224 51,992

United Kingdom 88,282 38,635

Other foreign countries 94,355 50,294

Total 3,779,451 3,566,178
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.   Net Interest income

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Interest income: 

on loans to credit and financial institutions and placements with  
credit institutions 6,345 9,664 3,651 6,290

on other loans 153,888 141,748 109,735 100,807

on debt securities acquired 11,950 11,913 10,669 10,608

contract management fees 2,824 3,052 3,896 4,322

Total interest income 175,007 166,377 127,951 122,027

Interest expense

on liabilities to credit and financial institutions and amounts  
due to credit institutions 26,451 22,110 14,619 12,292

on deposits and other repayable funds 24,099 24,099 19,023 19,023

on debt securities issued 13,132 13,134 7,715 7,720

on subordinated loans 3,156 3,156 2,782 2,782

contract management fees 1,680 1,680 958 958

Total interest expense 68,518 64,179 45,097 42,775

Net interest income 106,489 102,198 82,854 79,252

NOTE 2.   Net fee and commission income

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Fee and commission income: 

on assets under management 4,019 4,019 4,462 4,462

money transfer operations 21,834 21,847 17,593 17,604

payment cards services 9,919 9,919 7,221 7,221

securities operations 603 602 637 577

base currency exchange 4,209 4,209 3,100 3,100

other 13,168 10,969 9,087 8,260

Total fee and commission income 53,752 51,565 42,100 41,224

Fee and commission expense: 

money transfer operations 1,494 1,494 1,555 1,555

payment cards services 8,163 8,163 5,800 5,800

securities operations 270 268 188 188

base currency exchange 150 150 86 86

other 481 453 990 402

Total fee and commission expense 10,558 10,528 8,619 8,031

Net fee and commission income 43,194 41,037 33,481 33,193

Group other fee and commission income includes LTL 3,090 thousand  (2004  – LTL 2,426 thousand) income from operating 
lease contracts. 
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NOTE 3.   Net gain (LOSS) on operations with securities and financial instruments

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Debt securities, including treasury bills

Realised gain 1,769 1,767 2,717 2,710

Unrealised (loss) (881) (881) (141) (141)

Net income (loss) from debt securities 888 886 2,576 2,569

Derivative financial instruments

Realised (loss) (1,409) (1,409) (1,303) (1,303)

Unrealised (loss) 1,839 1,839 (361) (361)

Net income (loss) from derivative financial instruments 430 430 (1,664) (1,664)

Equity securities 

Income from equity securities - - 26 26

Realised gain  (loss) (3) (3) (306) (309)

Unrealised gain - - 555 555

Net income (loss) from equity securities (3) (3) 275 272

Total 1,315 1,313 1,187 1,177

As at 31 December 2005 the Group net realised gain (amounted to LTL 1,769 thousand) from debt securities included LTL 
1,289 thousand of realised gain from trading securities, LTL 166 thousand net realised gain (gain amounted to LTL 392 thou-
sand, losses amounted to LTL 226 thousand) from available for sale securities, LTL 351 thousand income from operations with 
index rights and LTL 37 thousand realised loss from bonds selling. Unrealised loss (amounted to LTL 881 thousand) is related 
with changes in the fair value of trading securities.

NOTE 4.   Provisions for other assets and contingent liabilities

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Expenses for provisions on:

other doubtful assets 33 83 530 407

finance leases (239) - 255 -

contingent liabilities (858) (903) 171 216

Total (1,064) (820) 956 623

NOTE 5.   OTHER INCOME

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

On sale of movable or immovable property and other security 2,435 2,247 2,737 2,007

Interest for late payments, penalties 994 994 256 256

On rent of movable or immovable property 496 734 465 658

Other 5,137 4,620 2,395 1,949

Total 9,062 8,595 5,853 4,870
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NOTE 6.   Impairment losses on loans 

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Increase (decrease) of impairment losses, net 15,279 15,463 3,979 3,920

Recovered previously written off loans (10,632) (10,632) (15,257) (15,257)

Total impairment losses 4,647 4,831 (11,278) (11,337)

NOTE 7.   Operating expenses

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Salaries, social insurance and other related expenses 49,685 47,669 52,572 50,701

Rent of premises and maintenance expenses  8,830 8,777 8,388 8,367

Transportation, post and communications expenses 5,732 5,540 6,171 6,120

Advertising and marketing expenses 3,914 3,675 4,732 4,381

Office equipment and maintenance expenses 6,995 7,627 6,314 6,970

Training and business trip expenses 1,018 972 923 910

Other operating expenses 8,171 7,789 5,846 5,896

Amortisation of intangible assets 1,423 1,322 1,220 1,146

Depreciation of fixed assets 12,998 10,717 14,601 12,682

Total 98,766 94,088 100,767 97,173

The Bank incurred LTL 10,579 thousand of social insurance expenses for the year ended 31 December 2005 (2004: LTL 
11,674 thousand).  Expenses for social insurance for the Group amounted to LTL 11,053 thousand (2004: LTL 12,115 thou-
sand).

Bank operating expenses includes LTL 847 thousand  (2004  – LTL 879 thousand) expenses from operating lease contracts. 

NOTE 8.   OTHER expenses

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Fees for compulsory insurance of individuals’ deposits 10 173 10 170 7 859 7 856

Taxes other than income tax 7 310 6 784 8 445 7 890

Other expenses 4 134 3 306 2 223 1 691

Total 21 617 20 260 18 527 17 437
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NOTE 9.   Income TAX

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Current tax for the year 323 42 140 -

Change of deferred tax asset (see below) (1,994) (1,899) (77) -

Total (1,671) (1,857) 63 -

The tax on the Bank’s and the Group profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the basic tax 
rate as follows:

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Profit before tax 42,537 41,183 20,429 20,541

Tax calculated at a tax rate of 15% 6,381 6,177 3,064 3,081

Income not subject to tax (1,512) (1,626) (3,936) (3,843)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 998 980 1,673 1,542

Recognition /utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses (7,538) (7,388) (738) (780)

Tax charge/(credit) (1,671) (1,857) 63 -

Movement in deferred tax asset

At the beginning of the year 6,083 6,000 6,006 6,000

Charge (credit) to equity 101 101 - -

Income statement credit (charge) 1,994 1,899 77 -

At the end of the year 8,178 8,000 6,083 6,000

In 2005 LTL 45 thousand of deferred tax (out of 8,178 thousand) is related to revaluation of available for sale securities (in 
2004 LTL 56 thousand).
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities of the Group (prior to offsetting of balances) during the period is as fol-
lows:

Group – deferred tax liabilities

VAT on long 
term assets

Valuation of 
securities Total

As at 1 January 2005 202 112 314

Charged/ (credited) to net profit 202 - 202

Charged/ (credited) to equity - (101) (101)

As at 31 December 2005 404 11 415
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Group – deferred tax assets

Depreciation of 
long-term assets

Valuation of 
securities

Tax
 losses

Accrued expenses/
deferred income Total

As at 1 January 2005 7 4 6,070 316 6,397

(Charged)/ credited to net profit 32 77 1,830 257 2,196

As at 31 December 2005 39 81 7,900 573 8,593

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for tax loss carried forward to the extent that realization of the related tax benefit 
through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2005 the Group has unrecognized tax losses of LTL 1,108 
thousand. (2004: LTL 6,499 thousand). 

The Group’s tax losses carried forward expire as follows:

Year of expiry Amount

2007 24,216

2008 22,087

2009 621

2010 487

47 411

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities of the Bank (prior to offsetting of balances) during the period is as fol-
lows:

Bank – deferred tax liability

VAT on long 
term assets

Valuation of 
securities Total

As at 1 January 2005  202 112 314

Charged/ (credited) to net profit 202 - 202

Charged/ (credited) to equity - (101) (101)

As at 31 December 2005 404 11 415

Bank – deferred tax assets

Depreciation of 
long-term assets

Valuation of 
securities

Tax
 losses

Accrued expenses/
deferred income Total

As at 1 January 2005 7 4 6,070 233 6,314

Total (charged)/credited to net profit 32 77 1,830 162 2,101

As at 31 December 2005 39 81 7,900 395 8,415
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Deferred income tax assets are recognized for tax loss carried forward to the extent that realization of the related tax benefit 
through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2005 the Bank has unrecognized tax losses of LTL 744 thousand 
(2004: LTL 6,272 thousand).

The bank’s tax losses carried forward expire as follows:

Year of expiry Amount

2007 24,216

2008 21,279

45,495

The Bank is expecting to utilize LTL 6,000 thousand deferred tax asset in 2006 by using tax losses carried forward.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities. The following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:

2005 2004

Deferred tax assets Group Bank Group Bank

Deferred tax assets 8,593 8,415 6,397 6,314

Deferred tax liabilities (415) (415) (314) (314)

8,178 8,000 6,083 6,000
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NOTE 10.   EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share were calculated by dividing the Group’s (Bank’s) net profit (loss) for the period by the weighted average 
number of ordinary registered shares in issue during the period. 

Earnings per share

2005 2004

Group Group

Net profit (loss) 44,208 20,366

Weighted average number of issued shares (units) 2,183,182 2,038,363

Previously reported Earnings per share (LTL per share) 9.57

Earnings per share (LTL per share) after adjustments through retained earnings 20.25 9.99

As at 31 December 2005 and as at 31 December 2004 the diluted earnings per share are the same as basic earnings per 
share.

Adjustments through retained earnings were made according to changes of IAS 27 and IAS 39. The changes of IFRS and cor-
responding changes of accounting policy resulted an increase in earnings per share of the Group in 2005 by LTL 0.23.

NOTE 11.   Cash and balances with central banks

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Cash and other valuables: 139,364 139,358 96,206 96,205

Placements with Central Bank:

Correspondent account with Central bank 20,668 20,668 - -

Required reserves in national currency 179,578 179,578 76,074 76,074

Required reserves in foreign currency 51,820 51,820

Total placements with Central Bank 200,246 200,246 127,894 127,894

Total cash and balances with Central Bank 339,610 339,604 224,100 224,099

 
Required reserves held with the bank of Lithuania are calculated monthly on a basis of previous month end liabilities and 6% 
required reserves rate is applied. According to the changed regulations of the Bank of Lithuania in 2005, all required reserves 
are held in LTL. The Bank of Lithuania pays interest for the required reserves. 

NOTE 12.   Treasury bills

Treasury bills are debt securities issued by the Republic of Lithuania for a term equal to or less than a year. The T-bills are 
categorised as assets held for trading and available-for-sale and carried at their fair value.  

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Trading securities 8,210 8,210 14,140 14,140

Securities available-for-sale 11,405 11,405 892 447

Total 19,615 19,615 15,032 14,587
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NOTE 13.   DUE FROM OTHER BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Due from banks

    Demand deposits 141,015 141,015 68,199 68,199

    Term deposits 4,273 4,273 221,355 221,355

    Repurchase transactions 60,032 60,032 53,497 53,497

    Long term loans 4,950 4,950 4,945 4,945

Total due from banks 210,270 210,270 347,996 347,996

Due from financial institutions (except banks)

    Term deposits 18 18 18 18

    Short term loans 1,959 1,959 3 3

    Long term loans 22,615 244,323 38,375 99,051

Loans granted to banks and financial institutions 24,592 246,300 38,396 99,072

Total 234,862 456,570 386,392 447,068

The loans granted to financial institutions consisted of the following (principals outstanding): 

•	 As at 31 December 2005 Loans to NORD/LB Lizingas UAB, amounting to LTL 221,708 thousand (2004: LTL 60,676 thou-
sand) falling due for repayment in 2005 – 2007; 

•	 Loan to Ūkio Banko Lizingas UAB amounting to LTL 15,002  thousand (2004: LTL 15,000 thousand) and falling due for 
repayment in 2006;  

•	 As at 31 December 2005 Loan to the Baltic-American Enterprise Fund, a US non-profit corporation amounting to LTL 
7,458 thousand (2004: LTL 23,170 thousand) falling due for repayment in 2007. 

NOTE 14.   Trading securities

Trading securities consist of debt securities issued by the Republic of Lithuania, Poland and debentures of corporate entities 
and Banks with the term of more than one year, which are held for trading. 

NOTE 15.   Derivative financial instruments 

The Group enters into transactions involving the following derivative instruments:
•	 Currency forwards, which represent commitments to purchase and/or sell foreign and domestic currency in the future at 

a fixed price. 

•	 Currency swaps, which are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in an economic 
exchange of currencies. The Group’s credit risk represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts if counter par-
ties fail to perform their obligation. This risk is monitored on an ongoing basis with reference to the current fair value, a 
proportion of the notional amount of the contracts and the liquidity of the market. To control the level of credit risk taken, 
the Group assesses the creditworthiness of the counter parties.  

•	 Foreign currency options which are contractual agreements under which the seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder) 
the right, but not the obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at a set date a specific amount of a foreign 
currency at a predetermined price. In consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange, the seller receives a premium 
from the purchaser. Generally the options are negotiated between the Group and a customer. The Group is exposed to 
credit risk on purchased options only, and only to the extent of their carrying amount, which is their fair value.

•	 Interest rate swaps, which are contractual agreements according to which cash flow based on the fixed interest rate cal-
culated on the notional amount is replaced with the cash flow based on the floating interest rate calculated on the same 
notional amount or vice versa.  In addition, interest rate swaps of floating vs floating or fixed vs. fixed interest rate cash flows 
as well as those that currencies are swapped in addition to the interest rates can be contracted. 
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•	 Stock index option is an agreement where under, in theoretical terms, the seller grants the buyer a right,  but not an obliga-
tion to purchase (or sell) corresponding basket of stock (substituted with a stock index) on a certain date in the future at a 
pre-agreed price. Settlement of the stock index option is made in cash only - the option seller pays the buyer the difference 
between the current market price and the pre-agreed price of the stock basket. The buyer pays a premium to the seller for 
this privilege.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised 
on the balance sheet but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the 
instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or price risks. The derivative instruments become 
favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates 
relative to their terms. 

The aggregate contractual or notional amount of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which instruments 
are favourable or unfavourable and, thus the aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate 
significantly from time to time. 

The fair values of derivative financial instruments are set out in the following table.

Contract amounts Fair values

Purchase Sale Assets Liabilities

As at 31 December 2004

Currency forwards and swaps 24,740 23,874 866 -

Interest rate swaps 89,773 89,773 - 1,666

Total 114,513 113,647 866 1,666

As at 31 December 2005

Currency forwards, swaps, index options 114,462 113,118 2,011 337

Interest rate swaps - - - -

Total 114,462 113,118 2,011 337

NOTE 16   Loans

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Loans to corporate entities 2,276,978 2,276,978 1,555,609 1,555,259

Loans to individuals 1,498,539 1,498,539 940,954 940,954

Total gross loans granted 3,775,517 3,775,517 2,496,563 2,496,213

Total impairment losses: (25,910) (25 910) (20,598) (20,413)

    to corporate entities (22,513) (22,513) (12,512) (12,327)

    to individuals (3,397) (3,397) ( 8,086) (8, 086)

Total 3,749,607 3,749,607 2,475,965 2,475,800

Mortgage loans pledged as collateral for mortgage bonds amounted to LTL 53,452  thousand as at 31 December 2005 (2004: 
LTL 53,388 thousand). 
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Impairment of loans
Value of collateral pledged against the loans granted amounted to LTL 6,849,882 thousand as at 31 December 2005 (2004: 
LTL 4,736,065 thousand). Impaired loans amounted to LTL 51,115 thousand at 31 December 2005.

Due to deteriorated financial strength and evaluation of likely recovery the Bank has material impairment losses on an indi-
vidual loan (assigned to the banking business segment of the Group). Gross loan amounted to LTL 15,061 thousand, impair-
ment losses for it amounted to LTL 12,417 thousand in 2005. Fair value was determined using discounting cash flow method 
as it is described in the accounting policy.  

Material recovery on an individual item (assigned to the banking business segment of the Group) amounted to LTL 10,467 
thousand. Realization of collateral let the reversal of the impairment loss.

Movement of impairment losses on loans is as follows:

Group Bank

Balance sheet

   Impairment losses as at 31 December 2003 21,772 21,645

   Increase 3,979 3,920

   Impairment losses on loans written off (5,147) (5,147)

   Exchange rate adjustment (5) (5)

   Other adjustments (1) -

Impairment losses as at 31 December 2004 20,598 20,413

   Increase, net (Note 6) 15,279 15,463

   Impairment losses on loans written off (10,021) (10,021)

   Exchange rate adjustment 54 55

Impairment losses as at 31 December 2005 25,910 25,910

Group Bank

Group (Bank) 2005 2004 2005 2004

Net loans granted to legal entities by industry sectors:

Agriculture, hunting and forestry 220,073 138,181 220,073 138,181

Manufacturing 601,458 472,795 601,458 472,795

Utilities 183,549 141,598 183,549 141,598

Construction 183,249 82,731 183,294 82,731

Trading 472,578 318,366 472,578 318,201

Transportation 77,457 48,658 77,457 48,658

Real estate, rent 282,295 128,055 282,295 128,055

State governance and compulsory social security 72,466 84,203 72,466 84,203

Other industry sectors 161,292 128,510 161,295 128,510

Total net loans to corporate entities 2,254,465 1,543,097 2,254,465 1,542,932

Net loans amounting to LTL 3,728,991 thousand at 31 December 2005 (in 2004: LTL 2,459,715 thousand) were granted to 
corporates and individuals located in Lithuania and net loans of LTL 20,616 thousand were granted to non-residents (in 2004: 
LTL 16,250 thousand).

Interest rates valid for loans as of 31 December 2005 were from 3.72% to 9.98%.



31

NOTE 17.   Finance LEASe receivables

Up to one 
year

From 1 
to 5 years Over 5 years

 
Total

Gross investments in leasing: 

   Balance at 31 December 2004 79,472 145,481 11,766 236,719

   Change during 2005 29,380 58,246 27,786 115,412

Balance at 31 December 2005: 108,852 203,727 39,552 352,131

Unearned finance income on finance leases:

   Balance at 31 December 2004 8,260 10,527 646 19,433

   Change during 2005 3,252 7,482 2,777 13,511

Balance at 31 December 2005: 11,512 18,009 3,423 32,944

Net investments in leasing before provisions:

   31 December 2004 71,212 134,954 11,120 217,286

31 December 2005 97,340 185,718 36,129 319,187

Changes in provisions:

   Balance as at 31 December 2003 329 761 85 1,175

   Increase (decrease) in provisions 114 149 (10) 253

Balance as at 31 December 2004 443 910 75 1,428

Increase (decrease) in provisions (91) (209) 61 (239)

Balance as at 31 December 2005 352 701 136 1,189

Net investments in leasing after provisions: 

   31 December 2004 70,769 134,044 11,045 215,858

31 December 2005 96,988 185,017 35,993 317,998

Segment information

2005 2004

By type of lessees: 

   Corporate enterprises 291,606 167,930

   Individuals 20,050 44,975

   Governmental institutions and public organisations 7,531 4,381

Net investments before provisions 319,187 217,286

By type of assets: 

   Trucks and other vehicles 156,801 113,604

   Real estate 54,877 44,259

   Manufacturing facilities 41,035 35,887

   Cars 59,292 18,771

   Agricultural machinery 6,381 4,035

   Office equipment and household appliances 801 730

Net investments before provisions 319,187 217,286

As at 31 December 2004 all lessees operated in Lithuania. As at 31 December 2005 agreements amounted LTL 397 thousand 
are done with lessees in Kaliningrad region.
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NOTE 18.   Investment securities

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Securities available-for-sale

Debt securities:

Government bonds of the Republic of Lithuania 97,622 96,665 40,359 39,633

Bonds of the banks 9,149 9,149 6,944 6,944

Unlisted corporate bonds - - 5,081 5,081

Government bonds of non-residents 140,355 140,355 36,600 36,600

Equity securities:

Unlisted 99 49 37 37

Total securities available-for-sale 247,225 246,218 89,021 88,295

Securities held-to-maturity

Government bonds of the Republic of Lithuania 143,512 143,512 107,969 107,969

Total investment securities 390,737 389,730 196,990 196,264

Fair value of held to maturity securities as at 31 December 2005 approximated LTL 148,776 thousand.

NOTE 19.   investments in SUBSIDIARIES 

2005 2004

Share
Nominal 

value
Acquisition 

cost
Carrying 

value
Carrying 

value

Investments in consolidated subsidiaries:

UAB NORD/LB Lizingas 100% 2,000 2,200 2,200 2,200

UAB NORD/LB Investicijų Valdymas 100% 2,000 4,000 4,000 4,000

Total 6,200 6,200

In 2004 subsidiaries were accounted for using the equity method of accounting. From the beginning of the year 2005 the sub-
sidiaries are accounted at cost. Therefore in the Bank financial statements the Bank made adjustments of equity investments 
amounting LTL 1,099 thousand through the Bank previous years retained earnings (2004 - increase of  LTL 228 thousand, 
before 2004  decrease of LTL 1,327 thousand). The changes of accounting policy resulted in the decrease of retained earnings 
of the Bank by LTL 1,273 thousand in 2005.
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NOTE 20.   INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Group Bank

31 December 2003

Cost 14,018 12,765

Accumulated amortisation (10,137) (9,459)

Net book value 3,881 3,306

Year ended 31 December 2004

Net book value at 1 January 3,881 3,306

Acquisitions 2,129 2,076

Write-offs after selling of subsidiaries (451) -

Amortisation charge (1,220) (1,146)

Net book value at 31 December 4,339 4,236

31 December 2004

Cost 11,866 11,606

Accumulated amortisation (7,527) (7,370)

Net book value 4,339 4,236

Year ended 31 December 2005

Net book value at 1 January 4,339 4,236

Acquisitions 1,021 885

Reclassification (21) (21)

Amortisation charge (1,424) (1,322)

Net book value at 31 December 3,915 3,778

31 December 2005

Cost 11,631 11,235

Accumulated amortisation (7,716) (7,457)

Net book value 3,915 3,778

Economic life (in years) 3-5 5

Intangible assets include purchased computer software and software licences.  
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NOTE 21.   property and equipment

Group
Buildings and 

premises Vehicles
Office 

equipment
Construction 

in progress Total

31 December 2003

Cost 94,461 8,999 67,940 15 171,415

Accumulated depreciation (13,049) (3,943) (37,328) - (54,320)

Net book value 81,412 5,056 30,612 15 117,095

Year ended 31 December 2004

Net book value at 1 January 81,412 5,056 30,612 15 117,095

Acquisitions - 3,451 8,297 550 12,298

Transfers from construction in progress 620 - - (525) 95

Disposals and write-offs (3,590) (541) (547) - (4,678)

Disposals and write-offs after selling of 
subsidiaries (707) (153) (1,208) - (2,068)

Depreciation charge (2,846) (1,257) (10,498) - (14,601)

Net book value at 31 December 74,889 6,556 26,656 40 108,141

31 December 2004

Cost 88,670 8,716 68,089 40 165,515

Accumulated depreciation (13,781) (2,160) (41,433) - (57,374)

Net book value 74,889 6,556 26,656 40 108,141

Year ended 31 December 2005

Net book value at 1 January 74,889 6,556 26,656 40 108,141

Acquisitions 325 4,585 4,056 - 8,966

Reclassification - - 21 - 21

Impairment losses (283) - (81) - (364)

Disposals and write-offs (3,356) (1,481) (795) (25) (5,657)

Depreciation charge (2,030) (1,537) (9,431) - (12,998)

Net book value at 31 December 69,545 8,123 20,426 15 98,109

31 December 2005

Cost 84,039 10,552 55,299 15 149,905

Accumulated depreciation (14,494) (2,429) (34,873) - (51,796)

Net book value 69,545 8,123 20,426 15 98,109

Economic life (in years) 50 6-10 3-27 - -
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From the total Group assets amount stated above the assets under operating lease agreements as at 31 December 2005 
amounted to LTL 8,951 thousand (in 2004 LTL 7,615 thousand) and are as follows:

Vehicles Office equipment Total

31 December 2003

Cost 5,398 2,130 7,528

Accumulated depreciation 1,035 - 1,035

Net book value 4,363 2,130 6,493

Year ended 31 December 2004

Net book value at 1 January 4,363 2,130 6,493

Acquisitions 3,287 - 3,287

Disposals and write-offs (365) - (365)

Depreciation charge (1,090) (710) (1,800)

Net book value at 31 December 6,195 1,420 7,615

31 December 2004

Cost 8,244 2,130 10,374

Accumulated depreciation 2,049 710 2,759

Net book value 6,195 1,420 7,615

Year ended 31 December 2005

Net book value at 1 January 6,195 1,420 7,615

Acquisitions 4,463 384 4,847

Disposals and write-offs (1,347) - (1,347)

Depreciation charge (1,454) (710) (2,164)

Net book value at 31 December 7,857 1,094 8,951

31 December 2005

Cost 10,158 2,514 12,672

Accumulated depreciation (2,301) (1,420) (3,721)

Net book value 7,857 1,094 8,951

Economic life (in years) 6 3 -
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Bank
Buildings 

and premises Vehicles
Office 

equipment
Construction 

in progress Total

31 December 2003

Cost 93,748 2,907 63,415 15 160,085

Accumulated depreciation (13,043) (2,483) (36,257) - (51,783)

Net book value 80,705 424 27,158 15 108,302

Year ended 31 December 2004

Net book value at 1 January 80,705 424 27,158 15 108,302

Acquisitions - - 8,232 550 8,782

Transfers from construction in progress 620 - - (525) 95

Disposals and write-offs (3,590) (253) (527) - (4,370)

Depreciation charge (2,846) (100) (9,736) - (12,682)

Net book value at 31 December 74,889 71 25 127 40 100,127

31 December 2004

Cost 88,670 100 65,660 40 154,470

Accumulated depreciation (13,781) (29) (40,533) - (54,343)

Net book value 74,889 71 25,127 40 100,127

Year ended 31 December 2005

Net book value at 1 January 74,889 71 25,127 40 100,127

Acquisitions - - 3,605 - 3,605

Reclassification - - 21 - 21

Impairment losses (283) - (81) - (364)

Disposals and write-offs (3,356) - (795) (25) (4,176)

Depreciation charge (2,030) (20) (8,667) - (10,717)

Net book value at 31 December 69,220 51 19,210 15 88,496

31 December 2005

Cost 83,714 100 52,437 15 136,266

Accumulated depreciation (14,494) (49) (33,227) - (47,770)

Net book value 69,220 51 19,210 15 88,496

Economic life (in years) 50 6-10 3-27 - -

No assets were pledged to a third party as  at 31 December 2005 and 31 December 2004.

The Bank (Group) had ownership title to all of the property and equipment at 31 December 2005 and 31 December 2004. 
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NOTE 22.   other assets 

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Accrued income 652 421 577 382

Deferred expenses 4,005 2,922 4,027 2,740

Receivables from foreclosed assets sold on instalment basis 830 830 1,669 1,669

Foreclosed assets, net 447 447 1,533 1,533

Other assets, net

    Prepayments for property and equipment 8,886 2,138 2,722 1,579

   Assets bought for leasing activities 15,922 - 2,096 -

   Other assets 7,185 3,906 5,216 3,828

Total other assets, net 31,993 6,044 10,034 5,407

Total 37,927 10,664 17,840 11,731

NOTE 23.   due to other banks and financial institutions

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Funds of banks

    Demand deposits 181,227 181,227 84,203 84,203

    Term deposits 572,962 572,962 412,468 412,468

    Loans 897,258 793,477 549,928 388,449

Total funds of Banks 1,651,447 1,547,666 1,046,599 885,120

Funds of financial institutions (except banks)

   Demand deposits 14,214 17,124 14,835 18,451

   Term deposits 18,413 18,413 5 184 5,184

Total funds of financial institutions 32,627 35,537 20,019 23,635

Total  1,684,074 1,583,203 1 066,618 908,755
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Note 24.   dUE TO CUSTOMERS

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Demand deposits:

   National government institutions 182,413 182,413 208,736 208,736

   Local government institutions 140,179 140,179 171,930 171,930

   Governmental and municipality companies 52,598 52,598 56,998 56,998

   Legal entities 773,433 773,433 468,020 468,020

   Non-profit organisations 25,040 25,040 23,044 23,044

   Individuals 607,458 607,458 330,425 330,425

Total demand deposits 1,781,121 1,781,121 1,259,153 1,259,153

Term deposits:

   National government institutions 7,127 7,127 9,638 9,638

   Local government institutions 1,777 1,777 627 627

   Governmental and municipality companies 30,445 30,445 13,452 13,452

   Legal entities 112,952 112,952 101,800 101,800

   Non-profit organisations 5,639 5,639  6,320  6,320

   Individuals 685,564 685,564 576,371 576,371

Total term deposits 843,504 843,504 708,208 708,208

Total deposits 2,624,625 2,624,625 1,967,361 1,967,361

As at 31 December 2005, demand deposits of national government institutions included LTL 95,717 thousand (2004: LTL 
63,087 thousand) of deposits of compulsory social and health insurance funds.

Interest rates valid for term deposits of individuals as at 31 December 2005 were from 1.2% to 4.9% and for term deposits of 
legal entities (except banks and other financial institutions) – from 1.3% to 3.55%.
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Note 25.   debt securities in issue

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Bonds denominated in EUR with floating interest rate 6 month 
EURIBOR+0.52 p.a., maturity 2006 172,428 172,428 - -

Mortgage bonds denominated in LTL with floating interest rate 6 month 
VILIBOR+0.23 p.a., maturity 2007 40,894 40,894 50,512 50,685

Bonds denominated in EUR with floating interest rate 6 month 
EURIBOR+0.32 p.a., maturity 2007 174,391 174,391 346,067 346,067

Bonds denominated in LTL with fixed interest rate 3.25 p.a., 
maturity 2008 43,095 43,095 - -

Bonds denominated in EUR, linked with Dow Jones EURO STOXX 50 
Index, zero coupon, maturity 2008 m. 10,006 10,006 - -

 Total debts securities in issue 440,814 440,814 396,579 396,752

Note 26.   Special and lending funds

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Funds of the Government of the Republic of Lithuania 10,929 10,929 1,986 1,986

Funds of international organisations 1,730 1,730 8,931 8,931

Total 12,659 12,659 10,917 10,917

Special funds have to be available to their providers on their first demand.

Lending funds, including soft loans that are serviced by the Bank under management contracts, are repaid under the terms 
provided for in the management contracts, i.e. amounts repaid by the borrowers are transferred to relevant funds on a monthly 
basis.  
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NOTE 27.   Other liabilities

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Accrued expenses 9,499 8,964 7,787 7,666

Deferred income 1,749 566 1,140 588

Other liabilities: 

Specific provisions for off balance sheet items 25 25 873 918

Transit accounts 7,980 7,980 9,242 9,242

Liabilities for transactions with payment cards 8,688 8,688 753 753

Liabilities to suppliers 16,528 - 1,016 -

Other liabilities 19,645 12,838 11,364 7,274

Total other liabilities 52,866 29,531 23,248 18,187

Total 64,114 39,061 32,175 26,441

NOTE 28.   SUBORDINATED LOANS

2005 2004

Loan provider: Group Bank Group Bank

Norddeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale, Hannover 52,426 52,426 52,436 52,436

European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD) 38,464 38,464 38,426 38,426

Stiftung der NORD/LB und der Oeffentlichen Versicherung fuer 
Braunschweig 8,768 8,768 - -

Total 99,658 99,658 90,862 90,862

All subordinated loans are denominated in Euro (EUR).  

In February 2005, the Bank and Stiftung der NORD/LB und der Oeffentlichen Versicherung fuer Braunschweig fund, founded 
by Norddeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale, signed a subordinated loan agreement. According to this agreement the Bank got 
10 years EUR 2,500 thousand (LTL 8,632 thousand) loan. This loan is repayable in full in 2015. Interest rate on the loan is 
4.39% until 24 February 2010 and 5.9% from 25 February 2010.

In August 2004, the Bank and EBRD signed a subordinated loan agreement that replaced the previous subordinated loan agree-
ment. According to a new agreement the Bank got a further EUR 3,330 thousand loan in September 2004. This loan (EUR 11,000 
thousand / LTL 37,981 thousand) is repayable in full in 2014. Interest rate on the loan is equal to 6 month EURIBOR + 1.4 p.a. 
until 28 September 2009 and 6 month EURIBOR + 2.4 p.a from 29 September 2009.

The subordinated loan from Norddeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale (EUR 15,000 thousand / LTL 51,792 thousand) is repay-
able in full in 2013. The interest rate on this loan is equal to 6-month EURIBOR + 0.61 p.a.
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NOTE 29.   Share Capital

The share capital of the Bank is divided into 2,464,316 (2004: – 2,053,861) ordinary registered shares with a par value of LTL 
95 each. On 8 September 2005, the Bank has registered the amendments to the Bank’s Bylaws with the Register of Legal Enti-
ties regarding the increase of the Bank’s authorised share capital by LTL 38.99 million by issuing 410,455 ordinary registered 
shares with a par value of LTL 95 each. The new shares have been allotted at LTL 180 each. All shares were subscribed and 
fully paid for. Share premium amounted to LTL 34,889 thousand as at 31 December 2005.

The shareholders of the Bank as of 31 December 2005 are listed in the table below: 

Number of shares
Nominal value, LTL 

thousand %

BANK DNB NORD A/S (DK) 2,294,643 217,991 93.11

EAST Capital Asset Management 160,857 15,281 6.53

Other 8,816 838 0.36

Total 2,464,316 234,110 100.00

NOTE 30.   Other RESERVEs

Mandatory reserve
According to the Law of the Republic of Lithuania on Banks, allocations to the mandatory reserve shall be compulsory and 
may not be less than 1/20 of the profit available for appropriation. The mandatory reserve may, by a decision of the annual or 
extraordinary general meeting of the shareholders, be used only to cover losses of the activities.

Fixed assets revaluation reserve
Fixed assets revaluation reserve relates to the revaluation of tangible fixed assets. The balance of reserve related to the assets, 
which have been disposed of or fully depreciated, amounted to LTL 76 thousand at 31 December 2005.  Management of the 
Bank plans to propose to the shareholders’ meeting to approve the transfer of this amount to retained earnings.  

Financial assets revaluation reserve
Financial assets revaluation reserve relates to unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of securities 
classified as available-for-sale which are recognised directly in equity through the statement of changes in equity (in 2004 
through profit (loss) statement directly). Therefore the Group made adjustments amounting LTL 343 thousand through previ-
ous years retained earnings (2004 - increase of LTL 866 thousand, before 2004 decrease of LTL 1,209 thousand) in the Group 
financial statements. The changes of accounting policy resulted an increase of retained earnings of the Group in 2005 by LTL 
509 thousand.
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NOTE 31.   ASSETS / funds under management

Assets under management and related liabilities are accounted for off- balance sheet. 

Assets under management totalling to LTL 78,923 thousand as at 31 December 2005 (2004: LTL 90,155 thousand) consist of 
loans granted to legal entities and individuals, including farmers and house building associations and other companies. These 
loans were granted from the Lithuanian Agricultural Support Fund, the Farmers’ Support Fund, the Agricultural Support Fund 
(proceeds from sale of grain received from the USA) and the Common Mortgage Support Fund. 

The Bank manages these loans on behalf of the Lithuanian Ministry of Finance and the Lithuanian Ministry of Agriculture. The 
Bank’s credit risk in respect these loans is limited to the customer’s failure to pay the accrued interest margin. The Bank is not 
subject to any interest or currency risk on these loans. 

NOTE 32.   Contingent liabilities and commitments

Legal claims. As at 31 December 2005, contingent liabilities that may arise as a result of pending court proceedings in which 
the Group (Bank) would appear as a respondent amounted to LTL 259 thousand. The Bank established a provision of LTL 31,3 
thousand against potential losses in relation to the outcome of legal claims.

Guarantees letters of credit, commitments to grant loans and other commitments. The Bank had outstanding guarantees, 
letters of credit and commitments to grant loans amounting to LTL 40,251 thousand, LTL 3,291 thousand and LTL 789,250 
thousand, respectively at 31 December 2005 (2004: LTL 28,489 thousand, LTL 565 thousand and LTL 248,462 thousand, 
respectively). Other commitments amounted to LTL 37,314 thousand at that date (2004: LTL 8,367 thousand). Provisions of 
LTL 25 thousand (2004: LTL 873 thousand provisions), accounted for under Other liabilities, were made for possible losses in 
relation to these commitments.  

Commitments to grant finance leases and acquire assets. As of 31 December 2005, NORD/LB Lizingas UAB had leasing 
contracts to a total value LTL 36,655 thousand (in 2004: LTL 7,987 thousand) under which assets have not been transferred 
to the customers. As at 31 December 2005, client’s prepayments under these agreements amounting to LTL 5,224 thousand 
(in 2004: LTL 1,128 thousand) are shown in the balance sheet as Other assets.

Correspondingly, UAB NORD/LB Lizingas had agreements signed with vendors regarding the assets designated for finance 
lease for the total amount of LTL 5,623 thousand (in 2004: LTL 1,180 thousand). Assets already received under these agree-
ments, amounting to LTL 15,922 thousand (in 2004: LTL 1,781 thousand) are accounted for as Other assets. UAB NORD/LB 
Lizingas has preliminary leasing agreements signed with clients regarding the above-mentioned assets.

The management of the Bank considers the level of provisions to be sufficient to cover possible losses, which may crystalise 
as a result of the above contingencies. 

Operating lease commitments – where the Bank is the lessee

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease agreements are as follows:

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Not later than 1 year - 981 - 1,010

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - 151 - 1,192

Total - 1,132 - 2,202
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Amounts receivable under operating lease – where the Group is the lessor

The future lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating lease agreements can be specified as follows:

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Not later than 1 year 2,530 - 1,880 -

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 2,431 - 1,621 -

Iš viso 4,961 - 3,501 -

The tax authorities have carried out a full-scope tax audit at the Bank for the years 1998 to 2001 (income tax audit was done 
for the period 1998 to 2000). There were no made significant remarks or disputes. 

The tax authorities may at any time inspect the books and records within 5 years subsequent to the reported tax year, and may 
impose additional tax assessments and penalties. The Bank’s management is not aware of any circumstances which may give 
rise to a potential material liability in this respect. 

NOTE 33.   CASH and cash equivalents

2005 2004

Group Bank Group Bank

Cash 139,363 139,357 96,204 96,203

Other valuables 1 1 2 2

Correspondent accounts with other banks 13,223 13,223 35,392 35,392

Correspondent accounts with the central bank 20,668 20,668 - -

Short-term securities 8,965 8,965 - -

Overnight deposits 127,792 127,792 32,805 32,805

Mandatory reserves with the central bank LTL 179,578 179,578 76,074 76,074

Total 489,590 489,584 240,477 240,476
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NOTE 34.   LIQUIDITY RISK

The structure of the Bank’s assets and liabilities by the remaining maturity as at 31 December 2005 is as follows: 

On 
demand

Less 
than 1 
month

1 to 3 
months

3 to 6 
months

6 to 12 
months

1 to 3 
years

More than 
3 years

Maturity 
undefi-

ned Total

Assets 

Cash and balances with central 
banks 339,604 - - - - - - - 339,604

Treasury bills - - 9,471 1,353 8,791 - - - 19,615

Due from other banks 13,223 190,407 4,278 241,047 17 7,573 7 18 456,570

Trading securities - 132 1,611 3,898 11,312 12,287 25,326 - 54,566

Derivative financial 
instruments - 296 503 531 - 681 - - 2,011

Loans - 85,675 129,691 245,482 392,529 1,244,358 1,630,755 21,117 3,749,607

Securities available-for-sale  - 4,216 5,884 21,375 4,076 73,424 137,194 49 246,218

Securities held-to-maturity - 2,347 1,757 2,847 8,524 29,234 98,803 - 143,512

Investments in subsidiaries - - - - - - - 6,200 6,200

Intangible assets - - - - - - - 3,778 3,778

Property and equipment - - - - - - - 88,496 88,496

Deferred tax assets - - - - - - - 8,000 8,000

Other assets 260 748 201 279 549 381 98 8,148 10,664

Total assets 353,087 283,821 153,396 516,812 425,798 1,367,938 1,892,183 135,806 5,128,841

Liabilities

Due to other banks 20,210 306,139 528,935 197,356 39,041 400,886 90,636 - 1,583,203

Derivative financial instru-
ments - 93 30 208 - 6 - - 337

Due to customers 1,783,464 235,645 200,622 179,780 163,932 46,176 15,006 - 2,624,625

Debt securities in issue - 2,483 615 45 172,383 265 288 - - 440,814

Special and lending funds 12,659 - - - - - - - 12,659

Other liabilities 10,412 24,500 628 582 1,137 - 20 1,782 39,061

Subordinated loans - 634 619 - - - 98,405 - 99,658

Shareholders’ equity - - - - - - - 328,484 328,484

Total liabilities and  
shareholders’ equity 1,826,745 569,494 731,449 377,971 376,493 712,356 204,067 330,266 5,128,841

Net liquidity gap (1,473,658) (285,673) (578,053) 138,841 49,305 655,582 1,688,116 (194,460) -
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The structure of the Bank’s assets and liabilities by the remaining maturity as at 31 December 2004 was as follows

On demand

Less 
than 1 
month

1 to 3 
months

3 to 6 
months

6 to 12 
months

1 to 3 
years

More than 
3 years

Maturity 
undefi-

ned Total

Total assets 207,674 362,905 143,014 236,757 445,704 865,742 1,152,165 200,862 3,614,823

Total liabilities and 
shareholders’ equity 1,303,679 436,336 298,169 266,261 137,411 673,106 285,724 214,137 3,614,823

Net liquidity gap (1,096,005) (73,431) (155,155) (29,504) 308,293 192,636 866,441 (13,275) -

The Bank’s liquidity ratios calculated using the rules approved by the Bank of Lithuania were as follows at the end of each 
month of the reporting period:

Liquid  
assets

Current  
liabilities

Liquidity ratio 
(per cent)

31 December 2004 864,591 2,072,985 41.71

31 January 2005 625,043 1,888,763 33.09

28 February 2005 702,804 2,109,898 33.31

31 March 2005 680,653 2,140,297 31.80

30 April 2005 704,038 2,179,640 32.30

31 May 2005 785,686 2,304,906 34.09

30 June 2005 849,233 2,408,559 35.26

30 June 2005 741,922 2,304,600 32.19

31 July 2005 794,577 2,380,435 33.38

31 August 2005 747,424 2,296,741 32.54

30 September 2005 781,028 2,355,591 33.16

31 October 2005 1,084,633 2,601,904 41.69

31 December 2005 1,040,984 2,801,533 37.16
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The structure of the Group’s assets and liabilities by the remaining maturity as at 31 December 2005 is as follows: 

On 
demand

Less than 
1 month

1 to 3 
months

3 to 6 
months

6 to 12 
months

1 to 3 
years

More 
than 3 

years

Maturity 
undefi-

ned Total

Assets

Cash and balances with 
central banks 339,610 - - - - - - - 339,610

Treasury bills - - 9,471 1,353 8,791 - - - 19,615

Due from other banks 13,223 189,786 4,278 19,960 17 7,573 7 18 234,862

Trading securities - 132 1,611 3,898 11,312 12,287 25,326 - 54,566

Derivative financial 
instruments - 296 503 531 - 681 - - 2,011

Loans - 85,675 129,691 245,482 392,529 1,244,358 1,630,755 21,117 3,749,607

Finance lease receivables - 12,051 17,101 24,283 42,986 128,207 92,717 653 317,998

Securities available-for-sale  - 4,231 5,896 21,375 4,078 73,724 137,822 99 247,225

Securities held-to-maturity - 2,347 1,757 2,847 8,524 29,234 98,803 - 143,512

Investments in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - -

Intangible assets - - - - - - - 3,915 3,915

Property and equipment - - - - - - - 98,109 98,109

Deferred tax assets - - - - - - - 8,178 8,178

Other assets 260 19,525 5,944 430 871 381 98 10,418 37,927

Total assets 353,093 314,043 176,252 320,159 469,108 1,496,445 1,985,528 142,507 5,257,135

Liabilities

Due to other banks 17,344 306,095 528,935 197,552 142,626 400,886 90,636 - 1,684,074

Derivative financial instru-
ments - 93 30 208 - 6 - - 337

Due to customers 1,783,464 235,645 200,622 179,780 163,932 46,176 15,006 2,624,625

Debt securities in issue - 2,483 615 45 172,383 265,288 - - 440,814

Special and lending funds 12,659 - - - - - - - 12,659

Other liabilities 10,442 43,429 4,788 582 1,883 987 183 1,820 64,114

Subordinated loans - 634 619 - - - 98,405 - 99,658

Shareholders’ equity - - - - - - - 330,854 330,854

Total liabilities and  
shareholders’ equity 1,823,909 588,379 735,609 378,167 480,824 713,343 204,230 332,674 5 257,135

Net liquidity gap (1,470,816) (274,336) (559,357) (58,008) (11,716) 783,102 1,781,298 (190,167) -
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The structure of the Group’s assets and liabilities by the remaining maturity as at 31 December 2004 was as follows

On  
demand

Less 
than 1 
month

1 to 3 
months

3 to 6 
months

6 to 12 
months

1 to 3 
years

More 
than 3 

years

Ma-
turity 

undefi-
ned Total

Total assets 207,675 372,918 152,250 253,616 431,001 952,469 1,201,249 208,273 3,779,451

Total liabilities and 
shareholders’ equity 1,300,101 436,354 298,528 266,984 241,143 730,351 285,724 220,266 3,779,451

Net liquidity gap (1,092,426) (63,436) (146,278) (13,368) 189,858 222,118 915,525 (11,993) -

The Group’s liquidity ratios calculated using the rules approved by the Bank of Lithuania were as follows at the end of the 
quarter of the reporting period:

Liquid  
assets

Current  
liabilities

Liquidity ratio  
(per cent)

31 December 2004 874,666 2,076,390 42.12

31 March 2005 692,061 2,149,519 32.20

30 June 2005 861,085 2,451,854 35.12

30 September 2005 759,708 2,405,253 31.59

31 December 2005 1,053,456 2,858,728 36.85
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note 35.   FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS AND OPEN POSITIONS

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. 
 
The Group’s open positions of prevailing currencies as at 31 December 2005 were as follows:

Assets USD EUR GBP RUB

Other 
curren-

cies
Total 

currencies LTL Total

Cash and balances with central banks 7,475 10,039 8,212 23 6,054 31,803 307,807 339,610

Treasury bills - - - - - - 19,615 19,615

Due from other banks 3,934 162,165 79 290 2,112 168,580 66,282 234,862

Trading securities - 3,497 - - - 3,497 51,069 54,566

Derivative financial instruments - 637 - - - 637 1,374 2,011

Loans 44,417 1,915,213 - - - 1,959,630 1,789,977 3,749,607

Finance lease receivables 1,936 310,987 - - - 312,923 5,075 317,998

Securities available-for-sale  - 150,777 - - - 150,777 96,448 247,225

Securities held-to-maturity - 25,042 25,042 118,470 143,512

Investments in subsidiaries - - - - - - - -

Intangible assets - - - - - - 3,915 3,915

Property and equipment - - - - - - 98,109 98,109

Deferred tax assets - - - - - - 8,178 8,178

Other assets 39 3,268 13 2 27 3,349 34,578 37,927

Total assets 57,801 2,581,625 8,304 315 8,193 2,656,238 2,600,897 5,257,135
 

Liabilities

Due to other banks 7,580 1,604,966 34 45 7 1,612,632 71,442 1,684,074

Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 337 337

Due to customers 150,214 265,017 3,787 253 5,795 425,066 2,199,559 2,624,625

Debt securities in issue - 356,824 - - - 356,824 83,990 440,814

Special and lending funds - 6 - - - 6 12,653 12,659

Other liabilities 206 1,934 13  1 14 2,168 61,946 64,114

Subordinated loans - 99,658 - - - 99,658 - 99,658

Shareholders’ equity - (305) - - - (305) 331,159 330,854

 

Total liabilities and shareholders’ 
equity 158,000 2,328,100 3,834 299 5,816 2,496,049 2,761,086 5,257,135

 

Net balance sheet position (100,199) 253,525 4,470 16 2,377 160,189 (160,189) -

Off-balance sheet position 99,602 (93,833) (4,362) - (1,871) (464) 1,812 1,348

 

Net open position (597) 159,692 108 16 506 159,725 (158,377) 1,348
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The Bank’s open positions of prevailing currencies as at 31 December 2005 were as follows:

 USD EUR GBP RUB
Other cur-

rencies
Total cur-

rencies LTL Total

Assets         

Cash and balances with central banks 7,475 10,039 8,212 23 6,054 31,803 307,801 339,604

Treasury bills - - - - - - 19,615 19,615

Due from other banks 5,870 269,759 79 290 2,112 278,110 178,460 456,570

Trading securities - 3,497 - - - 3,497 51,069 54,566

Derivative financial instruments - 637 - - - 637 1,374 2,011

Loans 44,417 1,915 213 - - - 1,959,630 1,789 977 3,749,607

Securities available-for-sale  - 150,777 - - - 150,777 95,441 246,218

Securities held-to-maturity - 25,042 - - - 25,042 118,470 143,512

Investments in subsidiaries - - - - - - 6,200 6,200

Intangible assets - - - - - - 3,778 3,778

Property and equipment - - - - - - 88,496 88,496

Deferred tax assets - - - - - - 8,000 8,000

Other assets 47 507 13 2 27 596 10,068 10,664

Total assets 57,809 2,375,471 8,304 315 8,193 2,450,092 2,678,749 5,128,841

Liabilities

Due to other banks 7,580 1,501,185 34 45 7 1,508,851 74,352 1,583,203

Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 337 337

Due to customers 150,214 265,017 3,787 253 5,795 425,066 2,199,559 2,624,625

Debt securities in issue - 356,824 - - - 356,824 83,990 440,814

Special and lending funds - 6 - - - 6 12,653 12,659

Other liabilities 206 1,731 13 1 13 1,964 37,097 39,061

Subordinated loans - 99,658 - - - 99,658 - 99,658

Shareholders’ equity - (305) - - - (305) 328,789 328,484

Total liabilities and shareholders’ 
equity 158,000 2,224,116 3,834  299 5,815 2,392,064 2,736,777 5,128,841

 

Net balance sheet position (100,191) 151,355 4,470 16 2,378 58,028 (58,028) -

 

Off-balance sheet position 99,602 (93,833) (4,362) - (1,871) (464) 1,812 1,348

 

Net open position (589) 57,522 108 16 507 57,564 (56,216) 1,348
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The Bank’s open positions of prevailing currencies as at 31 December 2004 were as follows:

USD EUR GBP RUB
Other cur-

rencies
Total cur-

rencies LTL Total

Assets 169 421 1 545 695 2 983 93 8 012 1 726 204 1 88 619 3 614 823

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity 164 570 1 423 624 2 557 55 2 438 1 593 244 2 021 579 3 614 823

Net balance sheet position 4 851 122 071 426 38 5 574 132 960 (132 960) -

Off balance position (4 611) 26 760 (369) - (5 534) 16 246 (15 384) -

Net position 240 148 831 57 38 40 149 206 (148 344) -

According to the regulations approved by the Bank of Lithuania, the overall open position (except EUR) of the bank’s capital  
should not exceed 25% and the open position of each individual foreign currency (except EUR) should not exceed 15% of 
the bank’s capital. 

The Bank has also extended loans in foreign currency.  Although they are usually financed in the same currency, depending 
on the main currency of the debtor’s cash flows, the strengthening of foreign currency against the litas may adversely affect 
the debtors’ ability to repay the loans, which increases the probability of future losses from loans.
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note 36.   INTEREST RATE RISK

The table below summarises the Bank’s interest rate risks as at 31 December 2005.  The Group’s assets and liabilities shown 
at their carrying amounts categorised by the earlier of contractual reprising or maturity dates.

Less than 1 
month

1 to 3 
months

3 to 6 
months

6 to 12 
months

1 to 3 
years

More 
than 3 

years

Non  
interest 
bearing Total

Assets

Cash and balances with central 
banks 339,604 - - - - - - 339,604

Treasury bills - 9,471 1,353 8,791 - - - 19,615

Due from other banks 216,037 4,279 236,236 - - - 18 456,570

Trading securities 132 1,611 3,898 11,312 12,287 25,326 - 54,566

Derivative financial instruments 296 503 531 - 681 - - 2,011

Loans 348,210 936,232 1,727,671 236,647 290,116 189,135 21,596 3,749,607

Securities available-for-sale  4,216 5,884 21,375 4,076 73,424 137,194 49 246,218

Securities held-to-maturity 2,347 1,757 2,847 8,524 29,234 98,803 143,512

Investments in subsidiaries - - - - - -  6,200 6,200

Intangible assets - - - - - - 3,778 3,778

Property and equipment - - - - - - 88,496 88,496

Deferred tax assets - - - - - - 8,000 8,000

Other assets 1,008 201 279 549 381 98 8,148 10,664

Total assets 911,850 959,938 1,994,190 269,899 406,123 450,556 136,285 5,128,841

Liabilities

Due to other banks 326,350 641,162 542,625 34,725 38,341 - - 1,583,203

Derivative financial instruments 93 30 208 - 6 - - 337

Due to customers 2,019,109 200,622 179,780 163,932 46,176 15,006 - 2,624,625

Debt securities in issue 215,064 43,316 172,423 5 10,006 - - 440,814

Special and lending funds 12,659 - - - - - - 12,659

Other liabilities 34,912 628 582 1,137 - 20 1,782 39,061

Subordinated loans 52,426 38,600 - - - 8,632 - 99,658

Shareholders’ equity - - - - - - 328,484 328,484

Total liabilities and shareholders’ 
equity 2,660,613 924,358 895,618 199,799 94,529 23,658 330,266 5,128,841

Interest rate sensitivity gap (1,748,763) 35,580 1,098,572 70,100 311,594 426,898 (193,981) -

The Bank’s interest rate risks as at 31 December 2004 was as follows:

Less than 
1 month

1 to 3 
months

3 to 6 
months

6 to 12 
months

1 to 3 
years

More than 
3 years

Non  
interest 
bearing Total

Total assets 1,087,377 714,952 869,585 217,319 260,445 264,278 200,867 3,614,823

Total liabilities and shareholders’ 
equity 2,013,774 722,864 438,265 134,390 80,011 11,369 214,150 3,614,823

Interest rate sensitivity gap (926,397) (7,912) 431,320 82,929 180,434 252,909 (13,283) -
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The Group’s interest rate risk as at 31 December 2005 is as follows: 

Less  
than 1 
month

1 to 3 
months

3 to 6 
months

6 to 12 
months

1 to 3 
years

More 
than 3 

years

Non  
interest 
bearing Total

Assets

Cash and balances with central 
banks 339,610 - - - - - - 339,610

Treasury bills - 9,471 1,353 8,791 - - - 19,615

Due from other banks 215,416 4,279 15,149 - - - 18 234,862

Trading securities 132 1,611 3,898 11,312 12,287 25,326 - 54,566

Derivative financial instruments 296 503 531 - 681 - - 2,011

Loans 348,210 936,232 1,727,671 236,647 290,116 189,135 21,596 3,749,607

Finance lease receivables 34,038 94,033 179,539 7,171 2,381 184 652 317,998

Securities available-for-sale  4,281 5,896 21,375 4,078 73,724 137,822 49 247,225

Securities held-to-maturity 2,347 1,757 2,847 8,524 29,234 98,803 - 143,512

Investments in subsidiaries - - - - - - - -

Intangible assets - - - - - - 3,915 3,915

Property and equipment - - - - - - 98,109 98,109

Deferred tax assets - - - - - - 8,178 8,178

Other assets 19,785 5,944 430 871 381 98 10,418 37,927

Total assets 964,115 1,059,726 1,952,793 277,394 408,804 451,368 142,935 5,257,135

Liabilities

Due to other banks 323,440 744,747 542,821 34,725 38,341 - - 1,684,074

Derivative financial instruments 93 30 208 - 6 - - 337

Due to customers 2,019,109 200,622 179,780 163,932 46,176 15,006 - 2,624,625

Debt securities in issue 215,064 43,316 172,423 5 10,006 - - 440,814

Special and lending funds 12,659 - - - - - - 12,659

Other liabilities 53,871 4,788 582 1,883 987 183 1,820 64,114

Subordinated loans 52,426 38 600 - - - 8,632 - 99,658

Shareholders’ equity - - - - - - 330,854 330,854

Total liabilities and shareholders’ 
equity 2,676,662 1,032,103 895,814 200,545 95,516 23,821 332,674 5,257,135

Interest rate sensitivity gap (1,712,547) 27,623 1,056,979 76,849 313,288 427,547 (189,739) -

The Group’s interest rate risks as at 31 December 2004 was as follows:

Less than 1 
month

1 to 3 
months

3 to 6 
months

6 to 12 
months

1 to 3 
years

More 
than 3 

years

Non  
interest 
bearing Total

Total assets 1,074,490 762,282 993,653 215,083 257,117 265,229 211,597 3,779,451

Total liabilities and shareholders’ 
equity 2,032,091 757,770 542,600 134,596 80 703 11,412 220,279 3,779,451

Interest rate sensitivity gap (957,601) 4,512 451,053 80,487 176,414 253,817 (8,682) -
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note 37.   RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For these financial statements parties are considered to be related if one party has an ability to control or significantly influence 
the other party when making decisions re financial or operating activities. 

In the normal course of business, the Bank enters into banking transactions with large shareholders, members of the Council 
and the Board as well as subsidiaries.

During 2005, a number of banking transactions were entered into with related parties in the normal course of business.  These 
include settlements, loans, deposits and foreign currency transactions.

The balances of loans granted by the Bank to related parties, except for subsidiaries and associated companies, and deposits 
accepted as at the end of the period and their average annual interest rates (calculated as weighted average):

Balances of deposits
Average annual  

interest rates
Principal of loans  

outstanding
Average annual  

interest rates

31 
December 

2005

31 
December 

2004 2005  2004 

31 
December 

2005

31 
December 

2004 2005  2004 

Management of the Bank 282 530 1.68% 2.40% 913 2,942 3.14% 3.22%

Related parties 524 221 1.17% 0.61% 2,103 1,238 3.38% 3.59%

In 2005, the total remuneration of the Group management approximated LTL 3,973 thousand (in 2004 – LTL 3,213 thou-
sand). In 2005 the total remuneration of the Bank’s management approximated LTL3,443 thousand (in 2004 – LTL 2,699 
thousand).

The following balances were outstanding with DnB NOR Group and NORD/LB Group companies:

Assets 2005 2004

     Correspondent bank accounts 685 4,721

     Overnight deposits 34,855 -

     Term deposits 4,273 95,072

Liabilities

     Correspondent bank accounts 330 68

     Derivative financial instruments - 1,666

     Overnight deposits 52,099 22,812

     Term deposits 121,386 121,536

     Subordinated loans 52,426 52,436

     Syndicated loan 17,287 -

Income 2005 2004

     Interest 1,773 262

     Net gain (loss) from operations with financial instruments 324 (596)

Expenses

     Interest   4,609 824

     Fee and commission 282 -

     Operating 882 483

Transactions with other companies within DnB NOR Group and NORD/LB Group are entered into at interest rates comparable 
to those of the market.
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The following balances were outstanding with subsidiaries:

Assets 2005 2004

     Demand deposits 2,910 3,616

     Loans 221,708 60,676

     Debt securities - 173

     Equity securities 6,200 6,200

     Other assets 181 83

Liabilities and equity

     Demand deposits 2,910 3,616

     Loans 221,708 60,676

     Debt securities - 173

     Other liabilities 181 83

     Bank’s investments 6,200 6,200

The main income/expenses from transactions with subsidiaries are as follows:

Income 2005 2004

     Interest 3,567 3,682

     Fee and commission 1,869 1,831

Expenses

     Interest 3,567 3,717

     Fee and commission 1,240 917

     Operating 867 1,072
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note 38.   CONCENTRATION EXPOSURE

As at 31 December 2005, the largest single exposure comprising loans to several related borrowers treated as a single bor-
rower, not secured by Government guarantees, amounted to LTL 62 million (total amount represents commitments to provide 
credit facilities), which is 14,85% of the Bank’s calculated capital (2004: LTL 62 million and 21.2% respectively).

NOTE 39.   FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT BY NORD UAB /LB INVESTICIJŲ VALDYMAS

UAB NORD/LB Investicijų valdymas manages the following pension funds: NORD/LB Pension funds 1, 2, 3 and NORD/LB 
Papildoma Pensija. In addition the Company is also managing NORD/LB Money market fund, NORD/LB Bonds fund and 
individual customers’ funds.

As at 31 December 2005, assets allocated to NORD/LB Money market fund amounted to LTL 10 million, NORD/LB Bonds 
fund amounted to LTL 1 million, NORD/LB Pension funds - LTL 33 million. Value of funds in the  individually managed securi-
ties portfolios of financial institutions  amounted to LTL 7 million. 
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NOTE 40.   POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 23 January 2006, the Bank issued 3 mln euro tranche of three year notes linked to stock indices of the world’s most ad-
vanced economies – US S&P 500, Japan NIKKEI 225 Stock Average and Western Europe Dow Jones STOXX 50. The bonds 
are being placed through the Banks client service outlets from 23 January 2006 to 02  March 2006. 

On 23 January 2006, the Bank issued 3 mln euro tranche of three year notes, which are linked to Russia’s RDX and Central 
Europe’s CECE stock indices. The bonds are being placed through the Banks client service outlets from 23 January 2006 to 
02  March 2006. 

On 23 January 2006, the Bank issued 9 mln euro tranche of three year notes is linked to US S&P 500, Japan NIKKEI 225 
Stock Average, Eurozone Dow Jones EURO STOXX 50 and Southeast Asia Hang Seng indices. The bonds were placed on 23 
January 2006.

On 19 January 2006 the Bank registered the mandatory non-competing tender offer to acquire the target securities. The pe-
riod of the tender offer expires on 24 February 2006.
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AB DnB NORD Bankas
J. Basanavičiaus str. 26, 2600 Vilnius, Lithuania
ph. (8 5) 239 34 44, fax (8 5) 213 90 57
e-mail: info@dnbnord.lt, http://www.dnbnord.lt

AB Bankas NORD/LB Lietuva
J. Basanavičiaus str. 26, 2600 Vilnius, Lithuania
ph. (8 5) 239 34 44, fax (8 5) 213 90 57
e-mail: info@nordlb.lt, http://www.nordlb.lt


